
 

 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI 01785 276133 

Please ask for Mike Bradbury 
Email: michael.bradbury@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Cabinet 
 

Wednesday 19 January 2022 
10:00 

Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford 
 

The meeting will be webcast live which can be viewed at any time here:  
https://staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

John Tradewell 
Director of Corporate Services 

11 January 2022 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.  Apologies  

   
2.  Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing 

Order 16 

 

   

3.  Decision notice of the meeting held on 15 December 
2021 

(Pages 1 - 16) 

   
4.  Leader's Update  
   

 Oral report of the Leader of the Council  
   

5.  Update from COVID-19 Member Led Local Outbreak 
Control Board 

(Pages 17 - 22) 

   
6.  Staffordshire Means Back to Business - Oral Update  

   
 Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy and Skills  
   

7.  Economic Recovery & Growth: Enhancing Delivery (Pages 23 - 34) 
   

8.  Establishment of the Staffordshire Leaders Board (Pages 35 - 52) 
   

 Leader of the Council  
   

9.  Future Commissioning Arrangements for Supported 
Living Services in Staffordshire 

(Pages 53 - 78) 

   

 Cabinet Member for Health and Care  
   



 

10.  Forward Plan of Key Decisions (Pages 79 - 86) 
   

11.  Exclusion of the Public  
   

 The Chairman to move:- 
 

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business which involve the likely disclosure 

of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A (as amended) of Local Government Act 1972 
indicated below”. 

 

 

PART TWO 
(All reports in this section are exempt) 

 

   
 

 

Membership 

 

Alan White (Chairman) 
Mark Deaville 

Mark Sutton 
Philip White 

Jonathan Price 
Charlotte Atkins 
 

Johnny McMahon 
Victoria Wilson 

Julia Jessel 
David Williams 

Ian Parry 
Simon Tagg 
 

 

Notes for Members of the Press and Public 
 

Filming of Meetings 
 
Staffordshire County Council is defined as a Data Controller under the Data 

Protection Act 2018. The County Council has agreed that Public meetings should 
be the subject of live web transmission ‘webcasting’. Fixed cameras are located 

within meeting room for this purpose.  

 
The webcast will be live on the County Council’s website and recorded for 

subsequent play-back for 12 months. The recording will also be uploaded to 

YouTube. By entering the meeting room and using the seats around the meeting 
tables you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use 

of those images and sound recordings for the purpose of webcasting.  

 
If you have privacy concerns about the webcast or do not wish to have your 

image captured then please contact the Member and Democratic Services officer 
named at the top right of the agenda. 

 

Recording by Press and Public 
 



 

Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is 
permitted from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of 

the chairman, disrupt the meeting.  
 





 

- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held on 15 December 2021 
 

Present: Alan White (Chairman) 
 

Attendance 

 

Mark Deaville 
Julia Jessel  
Ian Parry 

Jonathan Price  
 

Mark Sutton 
Simon Tagg 
Philip White 

David Williams 
 

 

Cabinet Support Member in attendance: Johnny McMahon 
 

Also in attendance: Arshad Asfar, Syed Hussain and Conor Wileman (local 
members). 
 

Apologies: Victoria Wilson 
 

PART ONE 
 

80. Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing Order 16 
 

The following Members declared an interest in accordance with Standing 
Order 16.5:- 
 

 
 

 

81. Decision notice of the meeting held on 17 November 2021 
 

Decision – That the notes of the meeting held on 17 November 2021 be 
approved. 

 
82. Leader's Update 

 
Decision – That the oral report of the Leader of the Council giving an update 
on a range of issues including the coverage of the trial of the father and 

stepmother of Arthur Labinjo-Hughes this month acting as a reminder of the 
vital role the Council and its partners play in protecting vulnerable children 

and young people in Staffordshire from harm and neglect; the huge 
challenge facing the Council in caring for the elderly, with demand for adult 

Member Minute 
Nos. 

Interest Reason 

Simon 

Tagg 
93 Personal 

Member of Kidsgrove 

Town Deal Board 

Philip 
White 

93 Personal 
Member of Kidsgrove 
Town Deal Board 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

social care rising sharply in Staffordshire this year, alongside difficulties in 
recruiting home care staff;  the long-awaited publication of the Government’s 

Social Care White Paper and the need for quality adult social care to be put 
on a long-term, sustainable footing; the Council awaiting its annual funding 

settlement from Government; the new Omicron variant of Covid-19 entering 
the UK with cases confirmed in Staffordshire; and the Council and its eight 

district and boroughs agreeing to work closer than ever on the things that 
matter most, including the creation of a County Deal bid to Government, 

under its plans to level up the country be noted. 
 
The Leader also extended his thanks to his cabinet colleagues, and everyone 

who works for Staffordshire County Council for their hard work and 
dedication over the past year. He also wished them a Merry Christmas, a 

Happy New Year, and a well-earned break over the festive season. 
 

83. Minutes of the meeting of the Property Sub-Committee held on 
1 December 2021 

 
Decision – That the minutes of the meeting of the Property Sub-Committee 
held on 1 December 2021 be received. 

 
84. Update from COVID-19 Member Led Local Outbreak Control 

Board 
 

Reasons for the Decision – To consider an update from the COVID-19 
Member led Local Outbreak Control Board including: 

 
 The number of new cases of Covid in Staffordshire remained high, and 

slightly below the England average. Cases were particularly high 

among school age children and were continuing to cause significant 
disruption to education. The Council continued to work with schools 

and other settings to prevent and control outbreaks.   
 The emergence of the Omicron variant of the virus was of concern 

because it showed significant mutations and there is the possibi lity it 
might escape the immunity conferred either by prior infection or 

vaccination. Further data was required before it was possible to be 
confident about the level of the threat posed by the Omicron variant.  

 Recent Government guidance on the use of face coverings in public 

places and the intention nationally to offer all adults a booster as well 
as children over 12 two doses by the end of January 2022. 

 HM Government had provided a series of one-off grants to support 
care providers, which had been distributed via local authorities. 

 In light of growing challenges nationally with recruitment and retention 
of care staff, HM Government had now provided a Workforce 

Recruitment & Retention Grant to fund measures to recruit and retain 
care staff.  Local authorities had been asked to disseminate the Grant 
as quickly as possible.  The Workforce Recruitment & Retention Grant 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

allocation for Staffordshire was £2.398m. The grant must be spent by 
31 March 2022 or any unused funds must be returned. 

 In Staffordshire the NHS had already provided £2.8m to support 
recruitment and retention in home care, and this funding was currently 

being disseminated to home care providers. A larger proportion of the 
Workforce Recruitment & Retention Grant would therefore be used to 

support care homes, Supported Living and Extra Care providers who 
had not benefited from the NHS funding. 

 
Decision – (a) That the update from the Covid Member Led Local Outbreak 
Control Board be noted. 

 
(b) That the HM Government grants already disseminated to care providers 

be noted. 
 

(c) That the dissemination of the Workforce Recruitment & Retention Fund to 
care providers be endorsed. 

 
85. Staffordshire Means Back to Business - Oral Update 
 

Decision – That the oral report of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member 
for Economy and Skills giving an update on “Staffordshire Means Back to 

Business” activity including the following matters be noted: 
 

 Staffordshire continuing to see a real appetite from the private sector 

to invest in the County including the new Pets at Home facility in 

Stafford and the proposals for the Chatterley Valley site, Meaford, ROF 

Featherstone and i54 in South Staffordshire. 

 

 JCB taking delivery of the new British built Toyota Corolla Hybrid 

vehicle for its national sales team, which links with their stated 

intention to drive forward their own low emissions technology through 

electric and hydrogen powered vehicles. 

 

 Concern over the challenges Covid19, including the new Omicron 

variant, continues to create for businesses.  

 

 The help available to businesses via extensive support packages, or 

the Stoke on Trent and Staffordshire Growth Hub, including the Get 

Started Scheme, a new support programme for people looking to start 

their own business or who may have recently done so.  

 

 The claimant count in Staffordshire saw a further decrease of 440 

claimants between September and October 2021 to a total of 18,560, 

3.5% of the working age population, compared to 5.9% regionally and 

4.9% nationally.  

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

 

 The proportion of young people in Staffordshire aged 18-24 that are 

claiming Universal Credit currently stands at 5.2%. Encouragingly, for 
the seventh month in a row Staffordshire had seen a decrease in the 

youth claimant count with a decline of 85 over the last month to a total 
of 3,375, reflective of more young people being able to return to work 

in hardest hit sectors such as retail and hospitality and the record 
levels of job vacancies currently available. 

 
86. VCSE Capacity Building Recommission 
 

 

“A strong, flexible and sustainable VCSE 
partnership is at the very heart of what makes our 
communities tick. 

 
The helping hand that they can offer can make the 

real difference to people living independently, 
helping people getting back on their feet and 

supporting people with their lives. 
 

This is an opportunity now to build on the excellent 
value and excellent services offered by our 
partners as we continue to emerge from the Covid 

pandemic”. 
 

Cllr Victoria Wilson, Cabinet Member for 
Communities and Culture 

 

Reasons for the Decision – To consider a brief update on the current 
approach to VCSE capacity building (including the findings of recent 

engagement with key stakeholders) and to agree proposals to commission a 
new VCSE Capacity Building Framework. 

 
Decision – (a) That the brief update provided on our current approach to 
VCSE capacity building, including the findings of recent engagement with key 

stakeholders be noted. 
 

(b) That approval be given to go out to market to commission a new VCSE 
Capacity Building Framework.  

 
(c) That authority be delegated to the Director for Corporate Services to 

award the VCSE Capacity Building Framework Agreement (“Framework 
Agreement”) to the successful tenderers and authorise the award of any 
subsequent call-off contracts. 

 
(d) That authority be delegated to the Director for Corporate Services to 

extend the VCSE Capacity Building Framework Agreement by an additional 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

fourth year, subject to both the Council’s annual MTFS process and a review 
of performance. 

 
87. Burton Town Deal - Proposed Library Move 

 

 

 

“As a Cabinet, collectively this has been an 
incredibly tough decision to make. The Town Deal 

process means projects which will ultimately join 
together to regenerate the town have to be 

evaluated separately. This can make it difficult to 
see the benefit the proposals will bring when they 

all come together and weight these against 
alternative proposals and opposing views. 
 

The fantastic proposals put forward for the 
waterfront area by the borough council this week, 

including a new public square, food hall, viewing 
tower and visitor centre as a gateway to the 

Washlands rely on the library relocating from its 
current site. This will be transformational for 

Burton, reconnecting the town with the river and 
creating a huge point of attraction to bring people 
into the town. 

 
We recognise that many of those who responded to 

the public consultation are opposed to the loss of 
the Market Hall as a market however, the borough 

council which owns the building has already made 
it clear that it is unviable in its current form. They 

will make the final decision on how the building wil l  
be used in the future but clearly no change is not 
an option.  

 
The debate in the town has moved on recently and 

even the alternative proposals for a food hall put 
forward by Burton Market Action Group would 

appear to displace the current market traders with 
no guarantee that it would safeguard the future of 

the building. The library relocation offers a rel iable 
way of protecting this important heritage building 
and in response to feedback from the consultation 

rising concerns about alterations to the structure of 
the building the plans have been revised to avoid 

the need for major changes. 
 

The Town Deal process still has some way to go 
before the plans are finalised but we are pleased 

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

that we are able to play our part in the 
regeneration and improvement of Burton town 

centre.” 
 
Cllr Philip White, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 

Member for Economy and Skills 
 

“We have for many months now set out the 
reasons behind the proposed library move and 

conveyed these through our comprehensive public 
consultation and engagement programme. These 

include the ability to restore a valuable heritage 
building in the Market Hall and giving the building a 
secure long-term future. In addition, it would bring 

more people to Market Place outside, offering 
opportunities to new and existing businesses in 

what is currently an under-used part of the town 
centre. The proposals would allow us to effectively 

move other county council functions into the 
building and provide services for small businesses. 

 
We have a strong track record in library service 
transformation and modernisation and aim to 

emulate the success of the projects in Lichfield, 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stafford which have 

proved hugely popular in those communities. We 
want to offer the same quality of facilities to the 

people of Burton 
 

Relocating the library to the Market Hall will allow 
the county council to create a first-class modern 
library and community hub in an inspiring space. 

Our benchmark will be Lichfield Library which has 
won national attention for the quality of the l ibrary 

building and has acted as a catalyst for the 
regeneration of the wider area. 

 
The eight-week consultation was a vital part of the 

decision-making process, enabling everyone to 
have their say. We carefully considered the 
feedback of around 1,500 people who responded 

either via the questionnaire or at one of the face-
to-face opportunities. This represents around two 

per cent of the population of the town. Just over 
three-quarters of those who responded were 

opposed to the scheme and we have carefully 
considered the reasons they gave for doing so”. 

Page 6



 

- 7 - 
 

 
Cllr Victoria Wilson, Cabinet Member for 

Communities and Culture 

 
Reasons for the Decision – To consider the detailed development of the 

project proposals for the proposed Library move alongside the findings of the 
recently completed public consultation. 
 

Decision – (a) Subject to confirmation from Government and the Town 
Board that a Town Fund allocation of £6,991,549, or greater, is awarded 

following submission of the necessary Business Case, and that the identified 
shortfall of £1,036,382 can be resourced from either the Town Board or 

other external funding; Cabinet agrees to re-locate Burton Library and 
consolidate other County offices into the Market Hall and Crossley House 

with a maximum capital investment from the County Council of £1,067,000. 
 

(b) Cabinet delegates authority to negotiate with East Staffordshire Borough 

Council, secure their ongoing support and deal with all aspects of any 
property transactions necessary to implement (a) above to the Property Sub 

Committee. 
 

(c) Cabinet delegates authority to submit the Final Business Case to East 
Staffordshire Borough Council to the Director of Corporate Services in 

consultation with the County Treasurer. 
 
88. Burton Town Deal - River Trent Cycle / Footbridge Update 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“The proposed River Trent cycling and pedestrian 
bridge would utilise nearly £7million from Burton’s 

Town’s Fund allocation – offering a fantastic 
opportunity to improve sustainable transport and 

revitalise the riverside areas. Our aim is to secure 
the additional funding needed to ensure we have 

an all-year round accessible facility. 
 

The bridge would also extend the leisure uses of 
the Washlands area, including proposed new visitor 
centre, by creating a circular walking or cycling 

route without traffic. 
 

The Towns Fund investment would bring long-term 
benefits to Burton and the surrounding areas and 

complement other proposed projects in the 
programme. These in turn will help attract future 

investment, businesses and create jobs”. 
 
Cllr Philip White, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 

Page 7



 

- 8 - 
 

 

 

 

Member for Economy and Skills 
 

“The new bridge over the River Trent would 
support the future regeneration of Burton and 
improve connectivity into the town for walkers and 

cyclists on the east of the river. It would also 
attract visitors and boost tourism on the riverside 

area and businesses located there. 
 

During the pandemic more people have discovered 
enjoyment through walking and cycling and we 

want to sustain that legacy in Staffordshire 
wherever we can. The new bridge would provide a 
pleasant traffic-free route for people, providing 

benefits for communities in the long-term. 
 

We recently completed a public consultation on the 
project with most respondents supporting the 

scheme. Their feedback on elements such as 
lighting will help us to shape the design. The 

funding allocation unfortunately falls short of the 
bridge we would need to build – one which is 
accessible all year and that will not be affected by 

high water levels. We will work with the Towns 
Fund Board to bid for the additional funding 

needed”. 
 

Cllr David Williams, Cabinet Member for Highways 
and Transport 

 

Reasons for the Decision – To consider progress, since August 2020, in 
respect of the proposal to create a new traffic free bridge over the River 

Trent in Burton to improve access for pedestrians and cyclists between the 
east and west sides of the river, increasing access to the town centre and the 
Washlands park. 

 
Decision – (a) That the earmarked award of £7,183,099 from the Burton 

Town Fund grant towards the creation of a new traffic free bridge over the 
River Trent at Stapenhill Hollows, Burton be noted. 

 
(b) That the feedback received as part of the public consultation exercise 

which was conducted as part of the Business Plan process be noted. 
 
(c) That the risks around affordability and useability in the flood plain be 

noted and that the Cabinet be supportive of the project proceeding 
conditional on these issues being mitigated to the Council’s satisfaction 

Page 8



 

- 9 - 
 

which will require additional external funding to be secured to enable the ful l 
scheme to be implemented as originally presented to the Town Deal Board. 

 
(d) That the submission of the Business Case to East Staffordshire Borough 

Council, as the accountable body, in conjunction with the Burton Town Fund 
process agreed by Government, in the sum of £7,183,099 to secure the pre -

Business Case costs, future design fees, tendered cost of the river crossi ng, 
associated ramps and footway links and a 12.5% construction contingency 

fund as set out in the Business Case, be agreed. 
 
(e) That the preparation of a complimentary Business Case in readiness to 

include within the County Council’s bid to the Levelling Up Fund, or other 
suitable external funding opportunities, to secure the necessary additional 

funding to complete the entire length of the stilted walkway structure either 
side of the new river crossing linking to Stapenhill Road to the east and 

Andressey Bridge and the Remembrance Gardens to the west, be agreed. 
 

(f) That the Cabinet receives further reports once the detailed design stage 
has been completed and the tendered construction costs are known in order 
to establish the position of the separate funding bids which combine to 

create an overall project and does not proceed to award any construction 
contract until Cabinet are satisfied that sufficient funding and contingencies 

are in place. 
 

(g) That the principle of adopting the bridge, ramps and stil ted walkway 
structures as part of the local publicly maintainable highway network, whilst 

continuing to work with East Staffordshire Borough Council and Government 
to investigate innovative ways of offsetting future maintenance costs 
including potential commercial sponsorship and the retention of any unspent 

construction contingency to be ring-fenced to this specific bridge as a 
commuted maintenance sum, be agreed. 

 
89. Home to School Transport - Review of Temporary Vacant Seat 

Scheme 
 

 

“Earlier this year we said that updated Government 

legislation had left the Council with a non-statutory 
service that could not be applied fairly and evenly 

across the county and placed a burden on 
taxpayers. We said then that we would not 
reinstate the suspended Temporary Vacant Seat 

Scheme unless a reasonable and workable solution 
could be found. Having undertaken a six-week 

listening exercise, to which less than one per cent 
of the school population responded, no such 

solution has been found and the service will not be 
reinstated”. 

Page 9



 

- 10 - 
 

 
Jonathan Price, Cabinet Member for Education (and 

SEND) 

 
Reasons for the Decision – To consider the outcome of the Home to 

School Temporary Vacant Seat Scheme listening exercise together with the 
recommendation that the Scheme should not be reinstated as no legal and 
fair solution that benefits all has been presented. 

 
Decision – (a) That the outcome of the temporary vacant seat scheme 

listening exercise carried out between 31 August 2021 and 12 October 2021, 
be noted. 

 
(b) That the recommendation for the future of the temporary vacant seat 

scheme and mitigating factors be noted. 
 
(c) That the home to school temporary vacant seat scheme be terminated. 

 
(d) That the Cabinet Agree to review and consider reinstating the temporary 

vacant seat scheme once the availability of coaches that meet the 
requirements of the Public Service Vehicles Accessibility Regulations (PSVAR) 

significantly improves in the Staffordshire. 
 

(e) That the Council’s Transport Operations and Future Connectivity Team be  
asked to work with bus operators to see if existing bus routes can be 
extended/altered so as to provide travel opportunities for some pupils 

impacted by the PSVAR legislation. 
 

90. Formal Report from the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman regarding SEND 

 

 

“This case was allowed to take too long to resolve 
at a time when demand for Education, Health and 

Care Plans (ECHPs) had risen sharply and put staff 
under great pressure. 

 
Extra investment has since been made in the team 
handling EHCPs and processes have been reviewed 

to provide a better, more responsive service to the 
thousands of families that use it.” 

 
Cllr Jonathan Price, Cabinet Member for Education 

(and SEND) 

 
Reasons for the Decision – To consider the Formal Report from the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) in relation to the failure 
to review and update a young person’s EHC Plan. 

Page 10



 

- 11 - 
 

 
Decision – (a) That the Formal Report from the Local Government and 

Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) in relation to the failure to review and 
update a young person’s EHC Plan, be noted. 

 
(b) That the recommendations made as part of the investigation report and 

the finding of “Report issued: upheld; maladministration and injustice”, be 
agreed. 

 
91. Proposed Relocation and Expansion of St Leonard's Primary 
School, Stafford 

 

 

“This authority is committed to building new 
schools, or expanding existing ones where 

appropriate, to ensure that all Staffordshire’s 
children have access to a good education in first 

class local facilities. 
 

This £4 million proposal to repurpose the Kingston 
Centre meets the anticipated future need in this 

part of Stafford in a sustainable way, as the site is 
within walking distance of the housing 
developments it will serve. 

 
Having engaged with the school community and 

residents in the area, the next step is to formally 
publish the proposal for the relocation and 

expansion of St Leonard’s Primary School.” 
 

Cllr Jonathan Price, Cabinet Member for Education 
(and SEND) 

 

Reasons for the Decision – To consider proposals for the publication of a 
statutory proposal for the proposed relocation and expansion of St. Leonard’s 
Primary School, Stafford. 

 
Decision – (a) That the publication of a statutory proposal for the proposed 

relocation and expansion of St. Leonard’s Primary School, Stafford, be 
approved. 

 
(b) That, subject to no major objection to the proposal, the Deputy Chief 

Executive and Director of Families and Communities be authorised to 
implement the proposal at the end of the representation period.  

 

92. Diversity and Inclusion - Principles, Objectives and Action Plan 
 

Page 11



 

- 12 - 
 

 

“The County Council has an important role to play 
in promoting diversity and inclusion, both as an 

employer and as a leader in the community.  It is 
important for our progress to be measured publicly 
and for us to remain proactive in ensuring that we 

continue moving forward and challenging prejudice 
in whatever form it takes. 

 
I want those who work for the County Council, 

those who come into contact with it and for the 
wider population of Staffordshire to know that this 

authority is committed to equal treatment and 
opportunity for all”. 
 

Cllr Alan White, Leader of the Council 

 
Reasons for the Decision – To consider the outcome of recent work to 

identify how the Council can further strengthen its commitment to promoting 
equality, diversity and inclusion across the Council and Staffordshire, 

together with proposals for the adoption of a set of Equalities, Diversity and 
Inclusion Principles and Objectives. 

 
Decision – That the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Principles, Objectives 

and Action Plan, as part of the Council’s commitment to promote equality, 
diversity and inclusion, be adopted. 
 

93. Chatterley Valley West - Project Update 
 

 

“This is a once-in-a-generation opportunity to 

unlock a major parcel of disused industrial land, 
close to strategic transport links and provide the 

opportunity for existing businesses to expand and 
for new ones to invest in Staffordshire. 

 
The county council has a proven track record of 

working in partnership to successfully develop 
commercial sites which provide jobs and growth in 
their area such as i54 South Staffordshire and 

Branston Locks in the east of the county. 
Chatterley Valley West will be a major project in 

the north and we look forward to working with our 
council and LEP partners to ensure its successful 

delivery”. 
 

Cllr Philip White, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Economy and Skills 

 

Page 12



 

- 13 - 
 

Reasons for the Decision – To consider proposals to unlock a 43-hectare 
(gross) employment site at Chatterley Valley which could generate around 

1,700 jobs (depending on the nature of the end users), Gross Value-Added 
Benefits of £67 million per annum and £60 million of private sector 

investment. 
 

Decision – (a) That Cabinet agrees to part fund the construction of the 
infrastructure to unlock the site, addressing the viability gap with the 

developer, Harworth Group, using prudential borrowing of up to £3.5 million 
on the basis of the most reasonable financial case scenario set out in the 
report, noting that the payback of business rates, through the Enterprise 

Zone designation, will be secured against the development of a speculative 
building to be developed out by Harworth Group. 

 
(b) That investment by Staffordshire County Council is conditional on 

agreeing a Business Rates agreement with the Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership to secure payback of the 

investment at the earliest opportunity. (The decision regarding the funding of 
the investment from future Enterprise Zone business rates is scheduled to be 
considered by the SSLEP Executive Board on 16th December 2021.) 

 
(c) That authority be given to the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 

Economy and Skills, in consultation with the Directors for Economy, 
Infrastructure and Skills and Corporate Services, to enter into relevant 

contractual arrangements pursuant to the delivery of the Chatterley Valley 
West Development Site. 

 
(d) That authority be delegated to the Director of Economy, Infrastructure & 
Skills to approve and agree the details of and enter into Section 278 

highways works contracts required to bring forward the site noting that 
£3.682m of Kidsgrove Town Deal funding has been allocated to these works.  

 
94. Families Health & Wellbeing (0-19) Service: Contract Extension 

 

 

“Following lockdown, continuing concern over 
Covid and disruption to learning and exams, the 

need to support new parents, children and young 
people is clear and obvious. 

 
Opting to extend this valuable service by 12 
months will allow us to carry on supporting those 

who need it, while allowing a suitable period to 
consider recent events and how we ought to 

deliver this help in future”. 
 

Cllr Mark Sutton, Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People 

Page 13



 

- 14 - 
 

 
Reasons for the Decision – To consider proposals to extend the contract 

for the Families Health and Wellbeing (0-19) service with MPFT from April 
2023 – March 2024. 

 
Decision – That the extension of the contract for the Families Health and 

Wellbeing (0-19) service with MPFT, from April 2023 – March 2024, be 
agreed. 

 
95. IA2609 Framework for Responsive Property Maintenance and 
Day Works 

 

 

“This process allows us to employ a range of 
suppliers to carry out planned property 

maintenance and repairs at buildings, including 
schools and libraries, across the county, while 

obtaining best value for money. 
 

Having a long-term relationship with approved 
suppliers enables us to maintain standards and 

save time by avoiding the need to advertise and 
manage multiple project tenders each year.” 
 

Cllr Mark Deaville, Cabinet Member for Commercial 
Matters 

 

Reasons for the Decision – To consider proposals for the procurement of a 
framework agreement for the provision of Responsive Property Maintenance 

and Dayworks. 
 

Decision – (a) That Staffordshire County Council (the “Council”) undertakes 
a procurement in line with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (the 

“Regulations”) to procure Framework Agreement for the provision of 
Responsive Property Maintenance and Dayworks. 
 

(b) That, following the procurement process, the successful suppliers be 
appointed to the Framework Agreement for the period 1st June 2022 to 31st 

May 2025 and that, dependent on the quality of their delivery, the 12-month 
service extension be implemented to a final contract end date of 31st  May 

2026. 
 

(c) That it be noted that the framework agreement and subsequent call off 
contracts will be entered into in accordance with the Council’s procurement 
regulations. 

 
96. Decisions taken by Cabinet Members under Delegated Powers 

 

Page 14



 

- 15 - 
 

Decision – That the following decisions taken by Cabinet Members under 
delegated powers be noted: 

 

Cabinet Member  Decision 

Cabinet Member 
for Health and 

Care 

In approving the award of a contract for Integrated 
Sexual Health & HIV Services to Inclusion (Part of 

Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (MPFT)) 
and a contract for Community Pharmacy Services to 

Central Health Solutions Ltd following a competitive 
procurement process. 

 

 
97. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

 
The Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 19 January to 18 May 2022, 

which detailed the following issues, was approved: 
 

Subject Matter Contact 

Strategic Plan and Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 2022 - 2027 

Name: Rachel Spain 

Tel: (01785) 854455 

Staffordshire County Council - Strategic Plan 
2022- 26 

Name: Kerry Dove  
Tel: 07855 679112 

Economic Recovery & Growth: Enhancing 

Delivery 

Name: Anthony Hodge 

Tel: (01785) 277204 

Options Appraisal for the Future 
Commissioning Model for Supported Living 

Services in Staffordshire 

Name: Andrew Jepps 
Tel: (01785) 278557 

Potential Joint Coroners Service, Business 
Case 

Name: Janene Cox MBE 
Tel: (01785) 278368 

Business Case for Care Home Developments Name: Helen Trousdale 

Tel: (01785) 277008 

Integrated Performance Report - Quarter 3 
2021/22 

Name: Kerry Dove/ Rob 
Salmon 

Tel: (01785) 276354 

Entrust Service Delivery Agreement Name: Ian Turner 
Tel: (01785) 277228 

2022/23 Schools Capital Programme Name: Ian Turner 
Tel: (01785) 277228 

Highways and Transport Capital Programme 

2022/23 

Name: James Bailey 

Tel: (01785) 276591 

Staffordshire Rural Economic Strategy Name: Anthony Hodge 
Tel: (01785) 277204 

Integrated Performance Report - Quarter 4 

2021/22 

Name: Kerry Dove/ Rob 

Salmon 
Tel: (01785) 276354 

 

 

Page 15



 

- 16 - 
 

 

 

 
 

 
Alan White 

Leader of the Council 
 

Page 16



 

Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Cabinet – Wednesday 19 January 2022 
 

Update from Covid Member Led Local Outbreak Control 
Board 

 
Recommendation 
 

Cabinet is asked to: 
 

a. Note the update from the Covid Member Led Local Outbreak Control 
Board. 

 
b. Approve extension of the contract with Nexxus Trading Services Ltd until 

31 March 2022 to provide Targeted Community Testing in line with the 
Government’s requirement to sustain and extend this programme. 
 

c. Approve proposals for expenditure of the Workforce Recruitment & 
Retention Round 2 and Infection Control Fund further round grants to 

care providers. 
 

Current Situation 

 

Introduction  

 
1. With the Omicron variant spreading fast, Covid infections in Staffordshire 

are at very high levels, with cases in all age groups. This is causing 
substantial pressure on health and care services due to Covid related 

hospitalisations on top of usual seasonal illness, as well as staff absences 
on top of long term recruitment and retention difficulties. 

 
Covid vaccination  

 
2. Vaccination is the best way to reduce complications and deaths from 

Covid and is even more important in the face of the Omicron variant. The 

intention nationally is to offer all adults a booster as well as children over 
12 two doses by the end of January 2022. The Council will continue to 

support the NHS to accelerate the vaccination programme.  
 

Targeted Community Testing 
 

3. The Targeted Community Testing programme (TCT) offers testing with 
lateral flow devices to check for Covid. People are advised to test 

regularly and especially before contact with vulnerable people and before 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 

visiting busy indoor settings. Local authorities are responsible for 

arranging TCT in their area. The Department of Health and Social Care 
provides a Community Testing Grant to fund Targeted Community 

Testing.  
 

4. Government has announced a 3-month extension of TCT until 31 March 
2022 to support the test, trace, isolate and vaccinate approach required 

under their Winter ‘Plan B’ and policy changes in response to the Omicron 
variant, which include testing of cases to allow early release from 
isolation, as well as daily testing of some close contacts. 

 
5. In Staffordshire TCT has been provided by Nexxus Trading Services Ltd 

(Nexxus).  So far 1.2m lateral flow device tests have been provided, 
focused on those communities most affected by Covid. The approach 

includes supervised testing as well as distribution of home test kits. Total 
contract expenditure to date is £3.1m. 

 
6. Nexxus have the experience, skills, and infrastructure to be able to 

continue to provide TCT effectively. The recommendation therefore is to 

extend the contract with Nexxus until 31st March 2022. The expectation 
is that this would provide a further 250,000 lateral flow device tests with 

an additional contract expenditure of £0.3m, funded by the Community 
Testing Grant. 

 
7. There are no significant legal implications in respect of extending the 

contract with Nexxus. Nexxus is the Council’s local authority trading 
company and therefore, if the relevant conditions are met, the Council 
can award a contract to Nexxus without a competitive procurement 

process as it falls outside the scope of the Public Contract Regulations 
2015. The Council will ensure that the extension is appropriately 

documented. 
 

Grants to care providers 
 

8. Care providers have been particularly hard hit by the pandemic and have 
faced challenges to maintain enhanced standards of infection prevention 
and control, test clients and staff, and in recent months to recruit and 

retain their workforce. Government has provided a series of one-off 
grants to support care providers, which have been distributed via local 

authorities. The allocations received by Staffordshire County Council are 
shown in Table 1. These have been distributed to care providers in line 

with grant conditions. 
 

9. On 17th and 29th December the Department of Health and Social Care 
(DHSC) announced two further grants. DHSC has asked local authorities 

to use both grants as quickly as possible. Funding can be given to 

Page 18



 

providers to support their own initiatives or spent by local authorities on 

schemes to help all providers. Both grants must be used by 31/03/22, 
with any unused funds returned to DHSC. 

 
a. Workforce Recruitment and Retention Fund Round 2. The 

Council will receive a total of £4,427,456 in two instalments in January 
2022 and February 2022. The funding is contingent on submitting an 

assurance statement to DHSC by 21 January 2022. The purpose of the 
grant is to recruit and retain sufficient staff over winter, and support 
growth and sustain existing workforce capacity.  

 
b. Infection and Prevention Control Fund further round. Details 

have not been yet been published by DHSC. Funding totals £60m in 
England with Staffordshire’s allocation expected to be c£900k. Grant 

conditions are expected to be similar to previous rounds of funding.  
 

10. Proposals for the expenditure of these grants are shown in Tables 2 and 
3. These are consistent with grant conditions and are a combination of 
funding to providers and schemes delivered by the Council. The proposals 

are largely an extension of allocations under the Workforce Recruitment 
and Retention Fund Round 1 and Infection and Prevention Control Fund 

previous rounds.  
 

11. The Council will require applications from care providers in order to give 
assurance that funding will be used in line with grant conditions, and that 

funding will reach frontline staff. Legal advice is being sought as to 
whether new applications are required or whether the applications and 
agreements received for Workforce Recruitment and Retention Fund 

Round 1 and previous rounds of Infection and Prevention Control Fund 
are sufficient. The Council will ensure that steps are taken to withhold 

payment or recover funding where providers fail to complete the required 
returns or adhere to the grant conditions.  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 19



 

Table 1: previous Government grants disseminated to care 

providers  
 

Name of Grant Date  

Allocatio

n (£m) 
 

Conditions 

ASC Infection Control 

Fund 1 
May-20 9.916 

To fund infection 

prevention and control 
practices and increase 

uptake of staff 
vaccination. 

ASC Infection Control 
Fund 2 

Nov-20 8.274 

ASC Infection Control 
Fund 3 

Apr-21 3.117 

ASC Infection Control 

Fund 4 
Jul-21 2.229 

ASC Infection Control 
Fund 5 

Oct-21 3.733 

Adult Social Care Lateral 

Flow Device Testing in 
care homes 

Jan 21 2.463 

To fund rapid testing of 

clients, staff and visitors 
in care homes, high-risk 

supported living and 
extra care settings. 

Adult Social Care Lateral 

Flow Device Testing in 
care homes 

Apr 21 2.039 

Adult Social Care Lateral 

Flow Device Testing in 
care homes 

Jul-21 1.674 

Adult Social Care Lateral 

Flow Device Testing in 
care homes 

Oct-21 1.954 

Workforce Capacity  Jan-21 1.771 To fund additional staff. 

Workforce Recruitment 

and Retention Fund 
Round 1  

Jan-21 2.398 

To recruit and retain 
sufficient staff over 

winter, and support 
growth and sustain 

existing workforce 
capacity.  

Vaccine Funding Oct-21 0.359 

To fund support for staff 

to access Covid and flu 
vaccinations. 

Total   39.927  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 20



 

 

Table 2: proposals for expenditure of the Workforce Recruitment & 
Retention Round 2  

 

Providers/Scheme 
Proposed 
expenditure 

(£) 

  

Funding to all care providers  
Annual Leave buy back schemes, support for child-care 

costs, staff incentives for retention and low sick leave, 
overtime payments for bank holiday days 

2,750,000 

Total funding to care providers 2,750,000 

  

Council schemes  

Increase maximum length of stay in interim respite 

beds to 6 weeks to ensure sufficient capacity for 
hospital discharge if home care is not available. 

111,000 

Funding for home care providers to support 

recruitment and retention during February and March 
to maintain capacity during Q1/2 2022. 

750,000 

Develop bed based reablement to support people being 

discharged from hospital. 
300,000 

Additional capacity to support home care 
commissioning. 

57,171 

Increase hourly rate for Nexxus reablement to enable 
the company to match MPFT Home First terms and 
conditions and support recruitment of additional staff. 

100,000 

Voluntary and community sector support for people, in 
particular safe and well checks for people discharged 
from hospital.  

270,000 

Induction and training for care reservists to enable 
them to be deployed as emergency staff to care 
providers.  

45,000 

Administration costs at 1%. £44,275 

Total funding for Council schemes 1,677,456 

  

Overall total  4,427,456 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 21



 

 

Table 3: proposals for expenditure of the Infection Control Fund 
further round  

 

Providers/Scheme 
Proposed 
expenditure 

(£) 

  

Non-discretionary funding to care providers  
Care homes and drug and alcohol services  £513,000 

Home care and other community care providers £126,000 

Total non-discretionary funding to care providers £639,000 

 
 

Discretionary funding to care providers and 
Council schemes 

 

Shared lives £3,566 

Communicator Guide  £463 

Advocacy Services £3,000 

In-house day care services £6,000 

Contracted day care services £7,000 

Non-contracted day care services £53,000 

Carers respite services £6,814 

Support for outbreak management for all care 

providers settings – e.g. agency staff 
£25,000 

Support for infection prevention and control for people 
with dementia and other complex needs 

£25,000 

Additional winter schemes (e.g. rotas to provide 

additional home care capacity and voluntary sector 
services to support hospital discharge.) 

£120,000 

Administration costs at 1% £9,000 

Total discretionary funding to care providers and 

Council schemes 
258,843 

 
 

Overall total  £897,843 

 
 

 

Page 22



 

Cabinet Meeting on Wednesday 19 January 2022 
 

Economic Recovery & Growth: Enhancing Delivery  
 

Cllr Philip White Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Economy & Skills said, 

 
“It is a County Council priority to support the 

Staffordshire economy so our communities have 
increased opportunities through better paid, 
better skilled jobs. Our role is to attract major 

investment – ensuring we have the right 
infrastructure in place for new and existing 

business, as well as a skilled workforce and an 
ideal environment to start and nourish new 

enterprise. 
 

Additional investment will enhance the 
successful work we have already carried out, 
particularly as our economy recovers from the 

pandemic. We remain committed to ensuring there is the right balance 
between our rural and urban areas and crucially to work in close partnership 

with our district and borough councils.” 
 

Report Summary:  
 

Cabinet on the 6th January 2021 invested an additional £1m per annum to 
support local business. This report sets out how this budget has been used 
over the last 12 months.  For future years it details how it will support 

economic growth and in particular the areas where this money will help 
expedite the delivery of our economic priorities, as set out in the strategic 

plan. This investment of £5m over the next five years, and thereafter, 
demonstrates the importance we place on the citizens of Staffordshire 

having not only access to jobs, but that they are also good well-paid jobs 
that recognise the challenges also faced by the environment. 

 
This investment will be put to work to deliver our Corporate Objectives.  It 
will not be used in isolation, but to complement our existing activity working 

with both the private and public sectors, not least through enhanced two-
tier working.  Our partners are key to our success, and we remain 

committed to work with them to maximise the benefit of every pound spent. 
As in previous years, our strategy is to use Staffordshire County Council 

investment to leverage external investment into the local economy. Our 
current economic growth programme unlocks nearly £7 of external funding 

for every £1 of our investment, and we intend to continue this approach 
over the next few years.  

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 

 

As set out in the emerging Strategic Plan, our proposed economic priorities 
are: 

 
a. Supporting the regeneration and transformation of our town centres  

b. Enabling infrastructure for economic growth through ‘ready to fund’ 
projects 

c. Developing and implementing programmes which will make Staffordshire 
one of the best places to start-up or step up in business 

d. Having a high skilled, better paid workforce 

e. A50/A500 Strategic Investment Corridor, realising opportunities it 
presents through innovative and sustainable growth 

f. Activities to be underpinned by the drive for Net Zero Carbon 
 

Using the £1m investment to deliver these priorities will enable us to move 
programmes and projects forward quickly with the sole objective of 

supporting Staffordshire’s business community and its employees and 
ultimately their families. 
 

Recommendations 
 

I recommend that Cabinet:  
 

a. Confirm the key priorities for delivery as: 
 

i. Supporting the regeneration and transformation of our town centres  
ii. Enabling infrastructure for economic growth through ready to fund 

projects 

iii. Developing and implementing programmes which will make 
Staffordshire one of the best places to start-up or step up in business 

iv. Having a high skilled, better paid workforce 
v. A50/A500 Strategic Investment Corridor, realising opportunities it 

presents through innovative and sustainable growth 
vi. Activities to be underpinned by the drive for Net Zero Carbon 

 
b. Support the use of the £1M p.a, as set out in Table 1 in paragraph 13 of 

this report. 

 
c. Delegate to the Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills the 

authority to move resources between activities as required to meet 
changing requirements (within the budget envelope), in consultation with 

the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy and Skills. 
 

  

Page 24



 

Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Cabinet – Wednesday 19 January 2022 
 

Economic Recovery & Growth: Enhancing Delivery  
 

Recommendations of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 

Economy & Skills 
 

I recommend that Cabinet:  
 

a. Confirm the key priorities for delivery as: 
 

i. Supporting the regeneration and transformation of our town centres  

ii. Enabling infrastructure for economic growth through ready to fund 
projects 

iii. Developing and implementing programmes which will make 
Staffordshire one of the best places to start-up or step up in business 

iv. Having a high skilled, better paid workforce 
v. A50/A500 Strategic Investment Corridor, realising opportunities it 

presents through innovative and sustainable growth 
vi. Activities to be underpinned by the drive for Net Zero Carbon 

 

b. Support the use of the £1M p.a, as set out in Table 1 in paragraph 13 of 
this report. 

 
c. Delegate to the Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills the 

authority to move resources between activities as required to meet 
changing requirements (within the budget envelope), in consultation with 

the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy and Skills. 
 
Report of the Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills 

 
Reasons for Recommendations:  

 
1. The Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy published 

in 2020 set the direction for our support for the local economy. From 
21/22 onwards, the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) includes an 

additional £1million per annum to support economic recovery and 
encourage economic growth. This is a clear illustration of this Councils 
absolute determination to support our economy, helping jobs growth and 

ensuring people have the skills to benefit from that growth.  Our economy 
is strong, but it faces challenges.  We will work closely with our 

businesses to address those challenges. 
 

Page 25



 

2. Of the additional resources made available, £0.840m of this £1m 

investment in 21/22 has been formally committed.  This can be broken 
down as follows: 

 
a. £0.200m has been used to create a Destination Management 

Partnership (DMP) post and to create a DMP marketing budget. This 
was approved by SLT and Informal Cabinet in January 2021 

 
b. £0.640m has provided the ability to develop and operate the 

Staffordshire Means Back to Business scheme.  This was also approved 

by Cabinet in January 2021. The scheme has enabled us to work 
closely with borough/district councils to provide direct and enhanced 

support to local business and its workforce. To date the Staffordshire 
Means Business scheme has been able to generate an investment fund 

of over £6million which includes a successful bid to the Community 
Renewal Fund (CRF) of £751,000.  Since its launch in April 2021, the 

Programme has already committed over: 
 

i. £1.25million in creating over 250 apprenticeships 

ii. £440k in free training for over 2000 people within 236 businesses 
iii. £205k in 46 companies ‘to Thrive’ business growth grants 

iv. £592k in business start-up support 
v. Ignite lesson plan delivered to over 7,000 students 

 
3. To build on this, the CRF money, made possible through SCC investment, 

allows us to target the following outputs: 
 

a. Get Started: 50 marketing or finance packages awarded 

b. The Carbon Literacy Project: 180 individuals x 1-day certified training 
c. Staffordshire To Thrive Grants: 20 businesses receiving a grant of 

between £2,000 and £5,000  
d. Staffordshire 500 Programme: 100 apprentices recruited with 

businesses receiving a grant of £5,000 per apprentice (Max 3) 
e. Nil Cost Training Grant: 25 businesses receiving a grant up to £5000 

 
4. As a result of the successful CRF bid, the allocation of £0.64M SCC 

resources will not be spent in year but it is planned to utilise this in future 

years as per Table 1 below.  
 

Key Priorities  
 

5. We will be refreshing our Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation Strategy in the next few months to reflect the changing 

impact of Covid on our economy, and the priorities set out in the 
Strategic Plan.  Over the next four years future growth and investment 

will be driven by the following Business Economy and Skills priorities: 

Page 26



 

 

a. Supporting the regeneration and transformation of our town centres  
b. Enabling infrastructure for economic growth through ready to fund 

projects 
c. Developing and implementing programmes which will make 

Staffordshire one of the best places to start-up or step up in business 
d. Having a high skilled, better paid workforce 

e. A50/A500 Strategic Investment Corridor, realising opportunities it 
presents through innovative and sustainable growth 

f. Activities to be underpinned by the drive for Net Zero Carbon 

 
6. These priorities complement the strengths of our County but also look to 

ensure we are investment ready and compliment, where appropriate, 
existing, or future national government programmes.  Building on 

existing activity we need to strengthen our capacity to generate new and 
challenging outputs that take us forward. To deliver these priorities will 

take extra capacity and investment.  Within this context we propose to 
invest the £1m p/a as follows: 

 

Future Investment Proposals 
 

Staffordshire Means Business 
 

7. With the recent announcement of the success of the County Councils own 
Community Renewal Fund application (£751,000), this programme value 

now exceeds £6M, which includes the vitally important contributions from 
our Districts and Boroughs.  Within this context we will: 

 

a. Continue with the objective of making Staffordshire the best place to 
start a business, to grow and to employ skilled local people and 

apprentices 
b. Continue to develop the visitor economy through the DMP with its    

associated job opportunities 
c. Enhance our offer to business as a low carbon sector 

d. Develop our rural employment base though business start-ups, skills 
development, and business support 
 

Town Centre Regeneration 
 

8. Through Town Deals, Future High Streets and Levelling Up programmes 
there is unprecedented levels of public funding (£130M) to support our 

urban areas. Linked to the private sector funding this will draw in, this is 
a huge investment and a major opportunity to address many of the 

problems our town centres are facing.  The County Council will work with 
all our partners to deliver the plans associated with these areas.  But we 

must also recognise that there are many areas that have not benefited 

Page 27



 

directly from this investment.  It is in these areas the County Council will 

work with partners to ensure they can benefit from investment to support 
good growth and investment and which ensures the sustainable future of 

that area.  We will: 
 

a. Enhance capacity to enable SCC to more directly deliver interventions 
that support the regeneration of our service centres working with our 

Boroughs/Districts to deliver Town Deal and Future High Street 
schemes and those that are not the beneficiaries of government 
funding 

b. Unlocking regeneration schemes that have stalled, working to develop 
strategies and to masterplan service centres to enable regeneration 

c. Support the delivery of the Levelling Up Fund within successful 
Districts and Boroughs and generate the County Councils own Levelling 

Up Fund activity. 
 

Developing Infrastructure Proposals Through Ready to Fund 
Projects 
 

9. The County Council has been successful in delivering significant 
infrastructure projects and strategic employment sites over recent years.  

These include i54 Extension, Stafford Western Access Route and Lichfield 
Southern Bypass.  We now need to refocus resources and activity to 

create the next generation of infrastructure schemes that are fully costed 
and ready to go, to benefit from national programmes and potential 

funding. We will: 
 

a. Develop Infrastructure led growth opportunities through working with 

our Districts and Boroughs to ensure the right local plans with a costed 
pipeline of infrastructure projects that are funding bid ready. 

 
Job Brokerage 

 
10. Investing in our economy and supporting infrastructure must have 

running in parallel investment in the skills of our communities to ensure 
that they are well placed to benefit from that investment.  This in turn 
allows them to compete for jobs in Staffordshire, but also further afield. 

We will: 
 

a. Pilot a job brokerage platform for employers to provide direct linkage 
to good and better jobs, apprenticeships, and training for skilled and 

higher skilled opportunities to the Staffordshire workforce 
b. Take advantage of strategic employment developments e.g., HS2, 

WMRFI and make better linkages with economic development to 
maximise the benefits of better jobs for Staffordshire residents. 

 

Page 28



 

11.  The Job Brokerage Service will provide: 

 
a. Recruitment Support: Providing employers with a local recruitment 

service to suit their needs and in return seeking to add value through 
job matching and securing, for example, an interview guarantee for 

clients who are work ready. 
b. Employer Engagement: provide support to SME sector which 

comprises most employers but are less likely to engage in employment 
and skills activities. 

c. Client Engagement: Reaching out to unemployed clients and including 

those who are not frequent JCP clients and are furthest from the jobs 
market. 

d. Intervention: Ensuring clients have pre-employment support by linking 
with the existing local provider network to access bespoke training and 

support, responding to client and employer needs. 
e. Screening and Matching: Working closely with local employers and the 

key organisations such as Jobcentre Plus, National Careers Service, 
Further Education/Higher Education and other referral agencies to 
identify appropriate clients and agree the support required to give 

them an opportunity to secure sustainable employment. 
f. Aftercare: Ensuring that businesses who recruit have access to further 

opportunities for workforce development by signposting to other offers 
of support such as Skills Support for the Workforce, the Skills Hub and 

other locally funded provision. 
g. Alignment: Working alongside and adding value to local initiatives, like 

the Make-It Investment Team and key County Council Services such 
as leaving care, adult disabilities and youth offending in order to secure 
better outcomes for residents and to build resilient families. 

 
A50/A500 Strategic Investment Corridor 

 
12. Staffordshire is packed with opportunity and we need to make sure we 

are well placed to maximise that opportunity and the benefits it derives 
for our communities.  Our location and infrastructure make us well placed 

for business not least along the A50/A500 corridor.  This is home to world 
class manufacturing in Staffordshire, including JCB, but also out of our 
administrative area, and which has connectivity through the corridor e.g. 

Rolls Royce in Derby.  We need to articulate, with the respective local 
authorities along the route (from Nottinghamshire to East Cheshire) and 

the Midlands Engine, the opportunities this creates not only in terms of 
sites and premises, but also innovation through green energy and digital.  

We will: 
 

a. Develop Staffordshire proposals through close collaboration with our 
Districts and Boroughs, to support the development of a strategic 

Page 29



 

corridor. This to be multifaceted around energy, infrastructure, 

manufacturing, skills, homes and digital connectivity 
 

b. Provide a leadership role working with all other impacted parties to 
articulate a compelling investment case along the entire length of the 

corridor 
 

Funding Requirements 
 

13. The table below sets out how we plan to use the additional £1m over the 

next 4 years. The funding will be utilised to both increase capacity within 
the service area and provide direct or indirect support to the programmes 

of work.  
 

Table 1 
 

 
14. The table above requires flexibility.  We will actively seek out external 

funding opportunities and if successful, we would seek to reallocate 

money to one of the other budget lines, particularly into Staffordshire 
Means Back to Business. It also requires flexibility over years so that 

underspend against available resources in one year can be invested in 
future years. 

 
15. Future year forecasts could also be utilised to cover debt charges for a 

capital investment, and this is currently reflected in 24/25 and 25/26.  
 

 

Page 30



 

16. This is a significant financial investment by the County Council .  Each 

work stream has been proposed to deliver our key Corporate Priorities.  
They will develop their own key performance indicators as part of delivery 

activity or through individual business cases where capital investment is 
proposed.  The additional resources will also deliver the following early 

outputs which in turn will propose further outputs and activities: 
 

a. Develop a Rural Economic Strategy together with a SMART Action Plan 
(Spring 2022) 

b. Deliver a new Destination Management Plan in conjunction with the 

DMP, Districts and Boroughs (Autumn 2022) 
c. To have identified and have costed up in sufficient detail a minimum 

of 10 infrastructure projects suitable for funding applications (Summer 
2022).  These will aim to: 

 
i. Provide access to new or potential sites for development 

(particularly commercial/industrial or enterprise zones) to unlock 
wider benefits for our economy 

ii. Create more capacity for sustainable journeys 

iii. Enable more reliable journey times, in particular for freight 
iv. Support the delivery of access to land for housing 

v. Connect communities with workplaces 
vi. Introduce sustainable transport options, such as cycle paths & 

footpaths 
vii. Link low-income areas with employment areas, city centres or areas 

with amenities 
viii. Promote energy efficiency & reduction of carbon emissions 

 

17. Much of this investment will be about working with partners both public 
and private.  It will aim to support the private sector to grow and employ 

more people, paying them higher salaries.  Core objectives aligned to 
this investment are:   

 
a. To enable the building and/or development of commercial property in 

a sustainable and inclusive manner, in both urban and agreed rural 
areas  

b. Improve productivity across Staffordshire 

c. Embrace energy efficiency including the reduction of carbon emissions 
and embracing clean/renewable energy production 

 
18. It will aim to create sustainable employment that provides; 

 
a. career progression, 

b. training and apprenticeship schemes 
c. higher than living wage 

 

Page 31



 

19. Finally, the proposal is to also support the business community to: 

 
a. Create a more robust supply chain network 

b. Nurture entrepreneurial talent 
c. Support good business ideas, start-ups and scale ups 

d. Stimulate and enable innovation 
e. Assist collaboration between Further Education/Higher Education and 

business 
 

Legal Implications 

 
20. The resources made available are revenue.  This means they will be 

subject to respective procedures and legal requirements, set out in the 
Councils Financial Regulations, to ensure they are spent in a correct and 

lawful manner.  The activity will also be subject to Scrutiny and Audit. 
 

21. The primary risk centres on the lack of suitably qualified applicants to 
posts; mitigated through a dynamic recruitment process and ensuring 
high visibility for the vacancies.  There will be an emphasis on getting 

the right person so, if necessary, time will be taken. 
 

22. Grant activity through supporting start-up businesses will be based on 
existing procedures with close liaison with Legal and Finance teams to 

ensure effective monitoring and probity of grant payments. 
 

23. All other risks, both financial and reputational will be managed and 
considered trough Service and Departmental risk monitoring activity.  

 

Resource and Value for Money Implications 
 

24. The financial breakdown and detail of the £1m in the MTFS to support 
economic recovery and encourage economic growth is included in the 

‘funding requirements’ section above.  
 

25. The £1m is being used to support a range of future investment proposals. 
The spend and usage will be regularly reviewed as part of the usual 
budget monitoring processes and external funding opportunities 

investigated.  
 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy published in 2020 
 

Page 32



 

 
 
Contact Details 
 
Assistant Director: Anthony Hodge, Assistant Director for Business & 
Enterprise 

 
Report Author:   Anthony Hodge 

Job Title:    Assistant Director for Business & Enterprise 
Telephone No.:   07980 949799  

E-Mail Address:           Anthony.hodge@staffordshire.gov.uk 

Page 33





 

Cabinet Meeting on Wednesday 19 January 2022 
 

Establishment of the Staffordshire Leaders Board 
 

Cllr Alan White, Leader of the Council said, 
 

“The County Council and Staffordshire’s eight 
district and borough authorities already work 

together in so many ways to benefit residents, 
whether it is collaborating to provide support 
during the pandemic, or by preparing business 

parks to bring new jobs to an area. 
 

“Formally coming together now to create the 
Staffordshire Leaders Board will allow us to build 

on these strengths by focusing on joint 
approaches to the big issues that affect us, 

including the economy, public health and 
reducing carbon emissions. 
 

“It also creates an official structure by which Staffordshire’s democratic 
organisations can speak jointly to central Government on how we can 

deliver better health and prosperity to the county.” 
 

Report Summary:  
 

In order to continue to improve joint working between the County, District 
and Borough Councils in Staffordshire, and to develop and negotiate a 
County Deal with Government, the Leaders of all nine local authorities have 

agreed to establish a Joint Committee to drive this work forward. The Joint 
Committee will be known as the Staffordshire Leaders Board.  To bring this 

into effect, the Cabinet of each of the nine authorities are being asked to 
formally agree to participate in the Staffordshire Leaders Board and to 

approve the Terms of Reference for the Leaders Board. 
 

Recommendations  
 
I recommend that Cabinet: 

 
a. Agree to the establishment of, and the County Council’s participation in, 

the Staffordshire Leaders Board on the basis of the Terms of Reference 
set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 

 
b. Appoint the Leader as the County Council’s representative on the Leaders 

Board. 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 

c. Appoint a named Cabinet Member as the substitute for the Leader on the 

Leaders Board. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 36



 

 
Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Cabinet – Wednesday 19 January 2022 
 

Establishment of the Staffordshire Leaders Board 
 

Recommendations of the Leader of the Council 
 

I recommend that Cabinet:  
 

a. Agree to the establishment of, and the County Council’s participation in, 
the Staffordshire Leaders Board on the basis of the Terms of Reference 
set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 

 
b. Appoint the Leader as the County Council’s representative on the Leaders 

Board. 
 

c. Appoint a named Cabinet Member as the substitute for the Leader on the 
Leaders Board. 

 
Report of the Director for Corporate Services 
 

Reasons for Recommendations:  
 

1. At a meeting of the Leaders and Chief Executives of the County, District 
and Borough Councils in Staffordshire on the 2nd December 2021 the 

Leaders discussed the strength of the relationship between the nine local 
authorities and the joint working that was already taking place.  The 

meeting also considered the opportunities that existed to take this work 
forward by further joint working, and how this might be further enhanced 
with the support of a devolution deal (“County Deal”) from Government  

providing additional powers and funding. 
 

2. The Leaders identified a range of areas where further joint working might 
be explored in 2022 including: 

 
a. Climate Change – bringing together strategies, skills and expertise for 

reaching Net Zero.  
b. Waste – strengthening the waste partnership, exploring greater 

collaboration on waste collection, and improve recycling. 

c. Economy – continuing to create the right conditions for economic 
growth, and the creation of more, better-paid jobs and opportunities 

for the people of Staffordshire.  
d. Improving Public Services – Making it as simple and easy for the people 

of Staffordshire to interact and engage with local public services. 

Page 37



 

e. Health Inequalities –In support of the establishment of the Integrated 

Care System and the Health and Wellbeing Board, there is an 
opportunity for local government partners in Staffordshire to work 

better, together to tackle many issues that have a significant impact 
on health, such as housing, parks and open spaces, leisure centres and 

employment.  
 

3. The Leaders also considered how a County Deal might support joint 
working within Staffordshire.  It was felt that a County Deal should not 
be seen as a one-off bid, but the start of a new, ongoing dialogue with 

central government, that builds on Staffordshire’s strengths, and 
addresses national challenges at a local level.  A County Deal will 

accelerate delivery of the local authorities’ ambitious programmes, 
improve public services, deliver on the Levelling Up agenda, and produce 

excellent returns for both the people of Staffordshire and the UK. Initially, 
the Leaders propose to focus on the following priorities: 

 
a. Climate Change – To place Staffordshire as a leading location for the 

green economy. 

b. Social Care – To address recruitment pressures in care, ease the 
pressure on the NHS, and develop innovative solutions that allow 

Staffordshire people to stay independent, healthy and living at home, 
for as long as possible. 

c. Logistics – To support the Logistics sector to be innovative, cleaner, 
greener and higher value. 

 
4. To allow Staffordshire to achieve the above, a full range of additional 

powers and funding would be required from Government. In exchange 

for these powers Staffordshire would deliver significant benefits for the 
people of Staffordshire and beyond, making a significant contribution to 

the Levelling Up agenda. This would include a significant increase in the 
number of local green economy jobs, a carbon neutral Staffordshire, and 

transformed logistics and social care sectors, 
 

5. In order to drive this agenda forward the Leaders recognised that the 
existing informal networking arrangements needed to be put on a more 
formal footing.  They decided that a Joint Committee would provide them 

with a vehicle that has the status and authority to speak to Government 
on behalf of the nine authorities, and that has the ability to make 

decisions itself to drive the existing joint working forward. 
 

6. The Leaders therefore decided to take back a proposal to each of their 
respective Cabinets proposing that their existing informal meetings are 

formalised as an Executive Joint Committee to be called the Staffordshire 
Leaders Board.  The remit of the Leaders Board will be: 

Page 38



 

a. To lead and oversee the development of a county devolution deal for 

Staffordshire with HM Government. 
b. To lead and oversee the alignment of relevant local authority action on 

Climate Change, Waste and Sustainability. 
c. To lead and oversee the alignment of relevant local authority plans for 

Enterprise and Government Funding and Investment streams. 
d. To lead and oversee the alignment of local authority interaction with 

the Health sector in Staffordshire.  
e. To lead and oversee the alignment of relevant local authority plans for 

future Infrastructure. 

f. To lead and oversee the alignment of relevant local authority plans in 
relation to Housing and Homelessness. 

g. To initiate, lead and oversee Staffordshire-wide joint initiatives to 
enhance local government efficiency and effectiveness. 

h. To act as a local public sector decision-making body for strategic 
economic growth. 

i. To act as a conduit to other sub-regional and regional bodies such as 
the Local Enterprise Partnerships and the Midlands Engine. 

j. Where appropriate, to agree shared priorities and bids for funding to 

existing and new funding sources such as Local Growth Funds and the 
Shared Prosperity Fund. 

k. To monitor and evaluate projects and programmes of activity 
commissioned directly by the Committee.  

l. To communicate and, where unanimously agreed, to align activity 
across Staffordshire on a range of other key public priorities that affect 

citizens. 
m. To prioritise and make decisions on the use of the funding that the 

Committee may influence or control. 

 
7. The Leaders Board will consist of the Leader from each of the nine local 

authorities and will operate on the basis of one member, one vote.   
 

8. Scrutiny will be undertaken by each of the constituent authority’s own 
scrutiny arrangements. 

 
9. The arrangements make provision for the Board to admit Stoke-on-Trent 

City Council to its membership as an equal member in the future. 

 
10. The full Terms of Reference proposed for the ~Leaders Board are 

attached as Appendix 1. 
 

Legal Implications 
 

11. The Joint Committee will act as a Joint Committee under Section 9EB of 
the Local Government Act 2000 and pursuant to Regulation 11 of the 

Page 39



 

Local Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) (England) 

Regulations 2012. 
 

Resource and Value for Money Implications 
 

12. There are no immediate and significant financial implications arising from 
the establishment of the Leaders Board in itself.  It is intended that it will 

derive its support from its constituent members.  As and when individual 
projects are commissioned the board will give consideration to the 
resource requirements necessary to deliver those projects. 

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference for the Staffordshire Leaders Board 

 

Contact Details 
 

Director: John Tradewell, Director for Corporate Services 
 

Report Author:   John Tradewell 

Job Title:    Director for Corporate Services 
Telephone No.:   07803 420957 

E-Mail Address:           john.tradewell@staffordshirre.gov.uk 
 

Page 40

mailto:john.tradewell@staffordshirre.gov.uk


                                                              

APPENDIX 1 

The Staffordshire Leaders’ Board 

Constitution for the Joint Committee 

 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To establish a Joint Committee of the local authorities in 

Staffordshire to explore opportunities for improved joint working and 

to develop and implement plans for devolution from Government 

through a County Deal. 

2. Governance 

2.1 The Joint Committee will act as a Joint Committee under Section 9EB 

of the Local Government Act 2000 and pursuant to Regulation 11 of 

the Local Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) 

(England) Regulations 2012. 

2.2 The Joint Committee will be known as the Staffordshire Leaders ’ 

Board (“the Leaders’ Board”). 

2.3 The Leaders’ Board will comprise the local authorities within the 

Staffordshire area: Cannock Chase District Council, East 

Staffordshire Borough Council, Lichfield District Council, Newcastle-

under-Lyme Borough Council, South Staffordshire District Council, 

Stafford Borough Council, Staffordshire County Council, Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council, and Tamworth Borough Council (“the 

constituent authorities"). 

2.4 The Leaders’ Board may admit Stoke-on-Trent City Council to 

membership at a later date and therefrom they will become a 

constituent authority with all the same rights and obligations as the 

other constituent authorities.  

2.5 Political Proportionality rules will not apply to the Leaders’ Board as 

constituted. 

2.6 The Leaders’ Board will be a legally constituted body with powers 

delegated to it by the constituent authorities in the following areas: 

a) to prioritise and make decisions on the use of the funding that the 

Leaders’ Board may influence or control. 

Page 41



                                                              

b) to review future governance requirements and delivery 

arrangements and how these can be best achieved in Staffordshire. 

c) to have direct oversight of the projects and initiatives which the 

Leaders’ Board has initiated or over which it has influence or control 

of the funding. 

d) to have strategic oversight of other key projects and initiatives 

within its remit as set our herein. 

2.7 The Leaders’ Board will not hold funds or monies on behalf of the 

constituent authorities.  

2.8 Should the Leaders’ Board work plan necessitate a change in the 

delegated powers and terms of reference of the Leaders’ Board any 

such change would require the approval of all the constituent 

authorities. 

2.9 These terms of reference will be reviewed on a biennial basis or 

sooner if necessary. 
 

3. Remit 

3.1 The remit of the Leaders’ Board will be: 

i. To lead and oversee the development of a county devolution 

deal for Staffordshire with HM Government. 

ii. To lead and oversee the alignment of relevant local authority 

action on Climate Change, Waste and Sustainability. 

iii. To lead and oversee the alignment of relevant local authority 

plans for Enterprise and Government Funding and Investment 

streams. 

iv. To lead and oversee the alignment of local authority 

interaction with the Health sector in Staffordshire.  

v. To lead and oversee the alignment of relevant local authority 

plans for future Infrastructure. 

vi. To lead and oversee the alignment of relevant local authority 

plans in relation to Housing and Homelessness. 

vii. To initiate, lead and oversee Staffordshire-wide joint 

initiatives to enhance local government efficiency and 

effectiveness. 

Page 42



                                                              

viii. To act as a local public sector decision-making body for 

strategic economic growth. 

ix. To act as a conduit to other sub-regional and regional bodies 

such as the Local Enterprise Partnerships and the Midlands 

Engine. 

x. Where appropriate, to agree shared priorities and bids for 

funding to existing and new funding sources such as Local 

Growth Funds and the Shared Prosperity Fund. 

xi. To monitor and evaluate projects and programmes of activity 

commissioned directly by the Committee.  

xii. To communicate and, where unanimously agreed, to align 

activity across Staffordshire on a range of other key public 

priorities that affect citizens. 

xiii. To prioritise and make decisions on the use of the funding 

that the Committee may influence or control. 
 

4. Membership 

4.1 One member from each constituent authority (such member to be 

the Leader from each constituent authority) and for the purposes of 

these terms of reference this member will be known as the principal 

member. 

4.2 Each constituent authority to have a named substitute member who 

must be an executive member.  

4.3 Where both the principal member and the substitute member 

attend a meeting of the Leaders’ Board the principal member shall 

be deemed as representing their authority by the Chair or Vice 

Chair. 

4.4 In the event of any voting member of the Leaders’ Board ceasing to 

be a member of the constituent authority which appointed him/her, 

the relevant constituent authority shall as soon as reasonably 

practicable appoint another voting member in their place. 

4.5 Where a member of the Leaders’ Board ceases to be a Leader of the 

constituent authority which appointed him/her or ceases to be a 

member of the Executive of the constituent authority which 

appointed him/her, he/she shall also cease to be a member of the 

Leaders’ Board and the relevant constituent authority shall as soon 

Page 43



                                                              

as reasonably practicable appoint another voting member in their 

place. 

4.6 Each constituent authority may remove its principal member or 

substitute member and appoint a different member or substitute as 

per that authority’s rules of substitution, and by providing twenty-

four hours’ notice to the Chair or the Secretary.  

4.7 The Leaders’ Board may from time to time, following a unanimous 

vote of those present and voting, co-opt additional non-voting 

members (“co-opted members”) at its discretion but such co-opted 

members will not be members or officers of the constituent 

authorities. 

4.8 Each constituent authority may individually terminate its 

membership of the Leaders’ Board by giving twelve months written 

notice of its intent to leave the Leaders’ Board to the Chair or the 

Secretary. At the end of these twelve months, but not before, the 

authority will be deemed to no longer be a member of the Leaders’ 

Board.  

4.9 Where an authority has previously terminated its membership of the 

Leaders’ Board it may rejoin the Leaders’ Board with immediate 

effect on the same terms as existed prior to its departure. 
 

5. Quorum  

5.1 The quorum shall be 5 members. No business will be transacted at 

a meeting unless a quorum exists at the beginning of a meeting. If 

at the beginning of any meeting, the Chair or Secretary after 

counting the members present declares that a quorum is not 

present, the meeting shall stand adjourned. 
 

6. Chair and Vice Chair 

6.1 The Chair of the Leaders’ Board will be the principal member of 

Staffordshire County Council (subject to para 6.2 below) 

6.2 The Leaders’ Board will vote annually at its first meeting after all 

the constituent authorities’ annual meetings as to whether the Chair 

should continue to be the principal member of the County Council or 

should be the principal member of one of the other constituent 

authorities. 

Page 44



                                                              

6.3 The position of Vice Chair shall be filled by the principal member of 

one of the other constituent authorities of the Leaders’ Board and 

this role will rotate annually between those other constituent 

authorities.  

6.4 The Chair or in their absence the Vice Chair or in their absence the 

member of the Leaders’ Board elected for this purpose, shall preside 

at any meeting of the Leaders’ Board. 

6.5 Appointments will be made in May of each year.  

6.6 Where, at any meeting or part of a meeting of the Leaders’ Board 

both the Chair and Vice Chair are either absent or unable to act as 

Chair or Vice Chair, the Leaders’ Board shall elect one of the 

members of the Leaders’ Board present at the meeting to preside 

for the balance of that meeting or part of the meeting, as 

appropriate. For the avoidance of doubt, the role of Chair and Vice 

Chair vests in the principal member concerned and in their absence 

the role of Chair or Vice Chair will not automatically fall to the 

relevant constituent authority’s substitute member. 
 

7. Voting  

7.1 One member, one vote for each constituent authority.  

7.2 All questions shall be decided by a majority of the votes of the 

members present, the Chair having the casting vote in addition to 

their vote as a member of the Committee. Voting at meetings shall 

be by show of hands.  

7.3 On the requisition of any two Members, made before the vote is 

taken, the voting on any matter shall be recorded by the Secretary 

so as to show how each Member voted and there shall also be 

recorded the name of any Member present who abstained from 

voting. 
 

8. Sub-Committees and Advisory Groups 

8.1 The Leaders’ Board may appoint sub-committees from its 

membership as required to enable it to execute its responsibilities 

effectively and may delegate tasks and powers to the sub-

committee as it sees fit. 

8.2 The Leaders’ Board may set up advisory groups as required to 

enable it to execute its responsibilities effectively and may delegate 

Page 45



                                                              

tasks as it sees fit to these bodies, which may be formed of officers 

or members of the constituent authorities or such third parties as 

the Leaders’ Board considers appropriate. 
 

9. Hosting and Administration 

9.1 The Leaders’ Board will at their first meeting decide which of the 

constituent authorities will be the host authority, and the Head of 

Democratic Services (or equivalent post) from that authority shall 

be Secretary to the Committee (“the Secretary”).  

9.2 The Leaders’ Board will at their first meeting decide which of the 

constituent authorities will provide the s151 Officer role  

9.3 The Leaders’ Board will at their first meeting decide which of the 

constituent authorities will provide the Monitoring Officer & Legal 

Adviser to the Leaders’ Board.  

9.4 The administrative costs of supporting the committee will be met 

equally by the constituent authorities, with each authority being 

responsible for receiving and paying any travel or subsistence 

claims from its own members. 

9.5 The functions of the Secretary shall be: 

a) to maintain a record of membership of the Leaders’ Board and 

any sub-committees or advisory groups appointed 

b) to publish and notify the proper officers of each constituent 

authority of any anticipated “key decisions” to be taken by the 

Leaders’ Board to enable the requirements as to formal notice of 

key decisions as given under the Local Authorities (Executive 

Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 

Regulations 2012 to be met; 

c) to carry out such notification to and consultation with members 

of any appointing constituent authority as may be necessary to 

enable the Leaders’ Board to take urgent “key decisions” in 

accordance with the requirements of the Local Authorities 

(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012; 

d) to summon meetings of the Leaders’ Board or any sub-

committees or advisory groups; 

Page 46



                                                              

e) to prepare and send out the agenda for meetings of the Leaders’ 

Board or any sub-committees or advisory groups; in consultation 

with the Chair and the Vice Chair of the Committee (or sub-

committee/ advisory group); 

f) to keep a record of the proceedings of the Leaders’ Board or any 

sub-committees or advisory groups, including those in 

attendance, declarations of interests, and to publish the minutes; 

g) to take such administrative action as may be necessary to give 

effect to decisions of the Leaders’ Board or any sub-committees 

or advisory groups; 

h) to perform such other functions as may be determined by the 

Leaders’ Board from time to time 
 

10. Meetings 

10.1 The Leaders’ Board will meet no less than quarterly and meetings 

will be aligned where necessary with deadlines for decisions on 

resources and investment plans. 

10.2 Meetings will be held at such times, dates and places as may be 

notified to the members of the Leaders’ Board by the Secretary, 

being such time, place and location as the Leaders’ Board shall from 

time to time resolve.  

10.3 Meeting papers will be circulated five clear working days in advance 

of any meeting. The Chair may choose to accept or reject urgent 

items that are tabled at any meeting. 

10.4 Additional ad hoc meetings may be called by the Secretary, in 

consultation, where practicable, with the Chair and Vice Chair of the 

Committee, in response to receipt of a request in writing, which 

request sets out an urgent item of business within the functions of 

the Leaders’ Board, addressed to the Secretary: 

(a) from and signed by two members of the Leaders’ Board, or 

(b) from the Chief Executive of any of the constituent authorities. 

10.5 The Secretary shall settle the agenda for any meeting of the 

Leaders’ Board after consulting, where practicable, the Chair or in 

their absence the Vice Chair; and shall incorporate in the agenda 

any items of business and any reports submitted by: 

Page 47



                                                              

(a) the Chief Executive of any of the constituent authorities; 

(b) the Chief Finance Officer to any of the constituent authorities; 

(c) the Monitoring Officer to any of the constituent authorities; or 

(d) any two Members of the Leaders’ Board. 

10.6 The Leaders’ Board shall, unless the person presiding at the 

meeting or the Leaders’ Board determines otherwise in respect of 

that meeting, conduct its business in accordance with the procedure 

rules set out in paragraph 13 below. 
 

11. Access to Information 

11.1 Meetings of the Leaders’ Board will be held in public except where 

confidential or exempt information, as defined in the Local 

Government Act 1972, is being discussed.  

11.2 These rules do not affect any more specific rights to information 

contained elsewhere under the law.  

11.3 The Secretary will ensure that the relevant legislation relating to 

access to information is complied with. Each constituent authority is 

to co-operate with the Secretary in fulfilling any requirements.  

11.4 Any Freedom of Information or Subject Access Requests received by 

the Leaders’ Board should be directed to the relevant constituent 

authority(s) for that authority to deal with in the usual way, taking 

account of the relevant legislation. Where the request relates to 

information held by two or more constituent authorities, they will 

liaise with each other before replying to the request. 
 

12. Attendance at meetings 

12.1 The Chair may invite any person, whether a member or officer of 

one of the constituent authorities or a third party, to attend the 

meeting and speak on any matter before the Leaders’ Board. 

12.2 Third parties may be invited to attend the Leaders’ Board on a 

standing basis following a unanimous vote of those present and 

voting. 

12.3 Where agenda items require independent experts or speakers, the 

Officer or authority proposing the agenda item should indicate this 

to the Secretary and provide the Secretary with details of who is 

Page 48



                                                              

required to attend and in what capacity. The participation of 

independent experts or speakers in Leaders’ Board meetings will be 

subject to the discretion of the Chair. 
 

13. Procedure Rules 

13.1 Attendance 

13.1.1 At every meeting, it shall be the responsibility of each member 

to enter their name on an attendance record provided by the 

Secretary from which attendance at the meeting will be 

recorded.  

13.2 Order of Business 

13.2.1 Subject to paragraph 13.2.2, the order of business at each 

meeting of the Leaders’ Board will be: 

i. Apologies for absence 

ii. Declarations of interests 

iii. Approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the last 

meeting 

iv. Matters set out in the agenda for the meeting which will 

clearly indicate which are key decisions and which are not 

v. Matters on the agenda for the meeting which, in the opinion of 

the Secretary are likely to be considered in the absence of the 

press and public  

13.2.2 The person presiding at the meeting may vary the order of 

business at the meeting.  

13.3 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

13.3.1 If a Member is aware that he/she has a disclosable pecuniary 

interest in any matter to be considered at the meeting, the 

Member must withdraw from the room where the meeting 

considering the business is being held: 

(a) in the case where paragraph 13.3.2 below applies, 

immediately after making representations, answering questions 

or giving evidence; 

(b) in any other case, wherever it becomes apparent that the 

business is being considered at that meeting; 

Page 49



                                                              

(c) unless the Member has obtained a dispensation from their 

own authority’s Standards Committee or Monitoring Officer. Such 

dispensation to be notified to the Secretary prior to the 

commencement of the meeting.  

13.3.2 Where a member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in any 

business of the Leaders’ Board, the Member may attend the 

meeting (or a sub–committee or advisory group of the 

committee) but only for the purpose of making representations, 

answering questions or giving evidence relating to the business, 

provided that the public are also allowed to attend the meeting 

for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or 

otherwise. 

13.4 Minutes 

13.4.1 There will be no discussion or motion made in respect of the 

minutes other than except as to their accuracy. If no such 

question is raised or if it is raised then as soon as it has been 

disposed of, the Chair shall sign the minutes.  

13.5 Rules of Debate 

13.5.1 A Member wishing to speak shall address the Chair and direct 

their comments to the question being discussed. The Chair shall 

decide the order in which to take representations from members 

wishing to speak and shall decide all questions of order. Their 

ruling upon all such questions or upon matters arising in debate 

shall be final and shall not be open to discussion.  

13.5.2 A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has 

been proposed and seconded. When a motion is under debate no 

other motion shall be moved except the following:  

i. To amend the motion 

ii. To adjourn the meeting 

iii. To adjourn the debate or consideration of the item 

iv. To proceed to the next business 

v. That the question now be put 

vi. That a member be not further heard or do leave the meeting 

vii. To exclude the press and public under Section 100A of the 

Local Government Act 1972  

Page 50



                                                              

13.6 Conduct of Members 

13.6.1 Members of the Leaders’ Board will be subject to their own 

authority’s Code of Conduct. 
 

14. Application to Sub-Committees 

14.1 The procedure rules and also the Access to Information provisions 

set out at paragraph 11 shall apply to meetings of any sub-

committees of the Leaders’ Board. 
 

15. Scrutiny of decisions 

15.1 Each constituent authority which operates executive arrangements 

will be able to scrutinise the decisions of the Leaders’ Board in 

accordance with that constituent authority’s overview and scrutiny 

arrangements. 
 

16. Winding up of the Leaders’ Board 

16.1 The Leaders’ Board may be wound up immediately by a unanimous 

vote of all constituent authorities.  
 

17. Amendment of this Constitution 

17.1 This Constitution can only be amended by resolution of each of the 

constituent authorities. 

Page 51





 

Cabinet Meeting on Wednesday 19 January 2022 
 

Future Commissioning Arrangements for Supported 
Living Services in Staffordshire 
 

Cllr Julia Jessel, Cabinet Member for Health 

and Care said, 
 

“Supported living services give people with 
physical and learning disabilities, mental health 

issues the care and support they need, while also 
ensuring they can be as independent as they 

wish. It is important that the services provided 
offer good quality care, promote independence, 
and offer the best value for money. 

 
When looking at our future arrangements for the 

commissioning of supported living services in the 
county, we must talk to our service users, 

providers and other stakeholders to discuss the 
options available. That way, we can ensure we 

our service users are getting the best quality of care that builds on their 
strengths and allows them to achieve the outcomes they want.”  
 

Report Summary:  
 

This report presents options and proposals for future commissioning 
arrangements for Supported Living services in Staffordshire. Cabinet 

approval is sought to extend current Supported Living contracts for one 
year to allow sufficient time to discuss the options with stakeholders, 

develop recommendations and return to Cabinet for approval of a preferred 
option. 
 

Recommendations: 
 

I recommend that Cabinet: 
 

a. Endorse the outcome of the options appraisal for future commissioning 
arrangements for Supported Living services in Staffordshire.  

 
b. Approve engagement with stakeholders to discuss the options and 

proposals. 

 
c. Request that feedback from stakeholders be used to refine the options 

appraisal and develop recommendations for future commissioning 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



 

arrangements for Supported Living services in Staffordshire, with these 

recommendations to be brought to a future Cabinet meeting for approval. 
 

d. Use the additional one-year contract extension available in the current 
Supported Living contracts to extend these contracts until 30th 

September 2023. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 54



 

 
Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Cabinet – Wednesday 19 January 2022 
 

Future Commissioning Arrangements for Supported 
Living Services in Staffordshire 

 
Recommendations of the Cabinet Member for Health and Care 

 
I recommend that Cabinet:  

 
a. Endorse the outcome of the options appraisal for future commissioning 

arrangements for Supported Living services in Staffordshire.  
 

b. Approve engagement with stakeholders to discuss the options and 
proposals. 
 

c. Request that feedback from stakeholders be used to refine the options 
appraisal and develop recommendations for future commissioning 

arrangements for Supported Living services in Staffordshire, with these 
recommendations to be brought to a future Cabinet meeting for approval. 

 
d. Use the additional one-year contract extension available in the current 

Supported Living contracts to extend these contracts until 30th 
September 2023. 

 

Report of the Director for Health and Care 
 

Reasons for Recommendations:  
 

Background 
 

1. Supported Living schemes offer housing along with care and support for 
people with learning disabilities, autism, mental health problems and/or 
physical disabilities. Housing is typically funded by housing authorities 

and provided by a social landlord. Where people are eligible for care and 
support then this is funded by the Council and provided by an appropriate 

provider. Setting out the Council’s commissioning arrangements for 
Supported Living will offer clarity to the market about future demand and 

our preferred model of care. 
 

2. The Council currently funds Supported Living for 416 people with 53 care 
and support providers, 373 in county and 43 out of county, at a total 

Page 55



 

gross annual cost of £23.3 million. There are three main commissioning 

arrangements for Supported Living, as shown in Table 1. These are: 
 

a. Up until the 30th September 2019, a Community Support Framework 
was used to procure Supported Living for people with learning 

disabilities and autism. There are currently 195 placements contracted 
via this route.  

 
b. Prior to implementation of the Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS), 

there were no formal procurement undertaken for Supported Living 

placements for people with mental health problems and physical 
disabilities. There are currently 150 of these placements still ongoing. 

 
c. From 1st October 2019, a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) was 

implemented to procure all new Supported Living placements. There 
are now 52 placements contracted via this route. There are currently 

192 care and support providers on the DPS and new providers can join 
at any point during the contract period. The DPS has recently been 
extended until 30th September 2022.  

 
3. In addition to the three main commissioning arrangements: 
 

a. A block contract is in place with Voyage for 3 physical disability 

Supported Living placements at Chestnut House. This is anticipated to 
be re-procured via the DPS during January 2022.  

 
b. The Council has an in-house learning disability Supported Living 

service at Horninglow Bungalows, with 16 placements currently.  
 

Table 1: Supported Living placements by contractual arrangement  

Contractual 

arrangement 

# 

placements 

Total gross 

weekly cost  

Total gross 

annual cost  

Average 

weekly 

placement cost 

Community Support 

Framework 
195 £253,893 £13,237,981 £1,302 

No written contract 150 £118,403 £6,173,532 £789 

Contracted via DPS 52 £46,089 £2,403,080 £886 

Chestnut House 3 £7,534 £392,823 £2,511 

Horninglow 

Bungalows 
16 £22,520 £1,174,192 £1,407 

Total 416 £448,439 £23,382,816 £1,078 

 
4. The Supported Living DPS has Reference Prices which the Council uses 

as a guide to determine whether bids submitted by providers can 
reasonably be expected to offer good quality and good value care and 

support. Reference Prices are £14.72 and £15.87 per hour during the 
daytime and £81.60 and £91.02 for a sleep-in. 

Page 56



 

 

5. There is a large variance in weekly placement costs due to the complexity 
of individuals, the set-up of schemes (for example the number of 

residents), and other factors that influence care and support provider 
costs. The 43 out of county placements are particularly expensive with a 

total gross weekly cost of £39,500, a total gross annual cost of £2 million, 
around 10% of total expenditure on Supported Living. 

 
6. Supported Living placements include: 46 individuals who are highly 

complex due to behavioural or physical issues and who receive very 

intensive support from staff, some with forensic history; 299 complex 
individuals who also receive 24-hour care; and 71 less complex 

individuals who do not require 24-hour care, as shown in Table 2.  
 

Table 2: Supported Living placements by complexity  
 

# 

placements 

Total gross 

weekly cost  

Average 

Weekly 

Placement 

Cost 

Weekly Cost 

Range 

Highly complex 46 £130,921 £2846 £1101 - £3272 

Complex 299 £293,981 £983 £310 - £3553 

Less complex 71 £23,537 £331 £25 - £599 

 

7. There are 479 Supported Living beds across 125 schemes within 

Staffordshire. 63 (17%) are currently vacant. The Council has 
nomination rights to 84 beds of which 9 (11%) are currently vacant.  

 
8. This suggests that further new accommodation is not needed 

immediately. Partnerships have been established with District and 

Borough Housing Departments which provide intelligence about new 
Supported Living schemes under development as well as any existing 

schemes likely to close.  
 

9. The Council will continue to work with District and Boroughs to bring 
forward schemes that are affordable for Council funded clients, offer an 

environment conducive to good quality care and support, promote 
independence, and facilitate economies - for example with use of a ‘core 
and cluster’ model using staff flexibly across more than one scheme, 

and/or use of technology.  
 

10. In most Supported Living schemes, the housing providers and care and 
support providers are independent of one another. This has the 

advantage that the care and support provider can be changed, if 
necessary, without moving residents, but does carry the risk that the two 

providers make decisions independently that adversely affect the other. 
There are a small number of Supported Living schemes, where the 
providers are the same organisation. This facilitates integrated decision 

making about housing and care and support. However, it carries a risk 

Page 57



 

that if there are issues with the care and support then it is difficult to 

change the provider. 
 

11. The advantages of current commissioning arrangements are: 
 

a. The Council is transparent and compliant with procurement regulations 
for new placements under the Supported Living DPS, and new 

providers who wish to work in Staffordshire can join the DPS at any 
point up until the end of the contract.  
 

b. There is an opportunity for competition in the market. 
 

c. Average daytime hourly and sleep-in rates are within our Reference 
Prices.  

  
d. Clients have choice.  

 
e. Of the 50 care and support providers that are registered with the Care 

Quality Commission, 80% are rated as outstanding or good, and 3% 

rated requires improvement or inadequate, with 17% yet to be rated. 
 

12. The disadvantages of current commissioning arrangements are: 
 

a. With the 192 Supported Living providers who have joined the DPS: 
 

i. there is a lack of highly complex/forensic placements available; 
ii. many offer out of county placements only as they have no schemes 

in Staffordshire; 

iii. some have no current placements and are therefore submitting bids 
for high levels of 1:1 care for new placements as the individual will 

be the only resident in the scheme; and 
iv. only a small number of providers can offer care and support for less 

complex individuals at a competitive price, and even fewer offer a 
model of reablement to maximise independence. 

 
b. The DPS does not capture data about quality of care prior to 

procurement of individual placements.  

 
c. The DPS does not allow the Council to prioritise filling vacancies and 

therefore does not facilitate economies of scale and provider 
sustainability.  

 
d. The DPS process is lengthy and bureaucratic.  

 
e. There remain large numbers of legacy placements for which there are 

no written contracts in place.  

Page 58



 

 

f. Whilst average daytime hourly and sleep-in rates are within our 
Reference Prices it is less clear that the placements overall offer value 

for money. Social work teams review care and support regularly to 
encourage strengths-based approaches that are least restrictive, and 

especially to minimise use 1:1 or more intensive support, however this 
expectation is not clearly defined in contracts. 

 
Future Commissioning Arrangements for Supporting Living 

 

13. The aim is to ensure access to good quality, affordable and sustainable 
Supported Living services that maximise people’s independence.  

 
14. The objectives are: 

 
a. To consolidate and simplify our arrangements for commissioning 

Supported Living. 
 
b. To develop the market for Supported Living and give providers the 

flexibility to build on individuals’ strengths and assets to achieve their 
outcomes.  

 
c. To support co-operation between Supported Living schemes and 

Providers and promote the use of technology.  
 

d. To build partnerships with housing providers to optimise access to 
Supported Living. 

 

e. To ensure that Supported Living services are available for people with 
a range of needs. 

 
f. To streamline the process for making Supported Living placements to 

make best use of resources and ensure processes are effective and 
efficient. 

 
g. To maximise the quality and productivity of services. 

 

h. To ensure robust and consistent quality assurance and contract 
management.  

 
i. To ensure that Supported Living services are maintained during the 

transition to new commissioning arrangements. 
 

 
 

Page 59



 

Options appraisal 

 
15. A range of options for future commissioning arrangements for Supported 

Living were developed through conversations between commissioners 
and providers and research on the arrangements used by other Local 

Authorities. Nine other Local Authorities were contacted to understand 
their commissioning arrangements for Supported Living. This identified: 

 
a. A number of different models were being used; 
b. Most Local Authorities were setting daytime hourly and sleep-in 

rates; 
c. Most Local Authorities were using an electronic Dynamic 

Purchasing System (DPS) or flexible framework contract; 
d. Most Local Authorities were allowing entry into contracts on the 

basis of Care Quality Commission (CQC) registration as a 
minimum, and in some areas CQC rating and additional quality 

criteria. 
 

16. The following procurement and contracting options were appraised: 

  
a. One prime provider for all Supported Living services – either an 

independent provider, a local authority trading company, or in-house. 
 

b. A Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS). Either similar to the current DPS, 
with quality assurance at the point of procurement, or with quality 

assurance before providers are appointed. 
 

c. A framework agreement with providers appointed to offer care and 

support and paid for placements individually. Providers would likely be 
contracted for different lots based on geography and complexity – for 

example appointment of a groups of providers to offer care and 
support in a single District or Borough for highly complex individuals. 

This could either be closed, with providers appointed at the start of the 
contract, or flexible and reopened to allow new providers to join 

periodically during the contract. 
 

d. Block contracts with providers appointed and paid to offer a fixed 

capacity. Again, one or more providers would likely be contracted for 
different lots based on geography and complexity.  

 
e. A combination of the above.  

 
17. The following pricing options were reviewed: 

 
a. Remain as is with Reference Prices for daytime hours and sleep-ins.  

 

Page 60



 

 

b. A range of weekly rates to be set based on complexity. 
 

c. Fixed daytime hourly and sleep-in rates across all Supported Living 
regardless of complexity. 

 
d. A range of daytime hourly and sleep-in rates based on complexity. 

 
18. A summary of the process and outcomes of the options appraisal is set 

out in Appendix 1.  

 
Proposal 

 
19. The proposal for future procurement and contracting arrangements 

for Supported Living services, based on the outcome of the options 
appraisal is to use a combination of the three highest scoring options, 

subject to stakeholder engagement: 
 

a. All highly complex individuals (approximately 15% of all 

placements) to be procured by block contract from around 1-3 
providers. These could be a either an independent provider, a local 

authority trading company, or in-house.  
 

This will enable care and support providers within Staffordshire to 
specialise to ensure adequate capacity for highly complex individuals, 

so that out of county placements can be repatriated within the county.  
 

b. Most complex and less complex individuals (approximately 70% 

of all placements) to be procured by block contract from around 8-12 
independent providers based on lots defined by geography and 

complexity.  
 

This will enable the Council to fill vacancies, benefit from economies of 
scale and establish a productive partnership with care and support 

providers and between these and housing providers. It will facilitate 
development of a ‘core and cluster’ model using staff flexibly across 
more than one scheme.  

 
c. Remaining complex and less complex individuals (approximately 

15% of all placements) to be procured by flexible framework 
agreement from independent providers appointed at the start of the 

contract and then periodically to lots defined by geography and 
complexity.  

 

Page 61



 

This will enable capacity to be flexed to meet demand and ensure that 

there are sufficient placements are available whilst minimising 
vacancies within schemes contracted on block contracts.   

 
d. Approximately 21 placements are ad hoc arrangements provided by 

Personal Assistants or other community services rather than residents 
in a Supported Living scheme. It is expected that these would be 

contracted using a separate arrangement such the Day Opportunities 
Dynamic Purchasing System. 

 

20. All providers would be required to demonstrate that they met minimum 
quality standards prior to appointment, including Care Quality 

Commission registration where appropriate. Quality assurance 
arrangements would be put in place for the duration of the contract. 

Providers would also be expected to offer strengths-based approaches 
for all these individuals that are least restrictive, and especially to 

minimise use 1:1 or more intensive support, and for less complex 
individuals not requiring 24-hour care a model of reablement to maximise 
independence. 

 
21. Based on the outcome of the options appraisal the proposal for future 

pricing arrangements for Supported Living services is for range of 
weekly rates, subject to stakeholder engagement. These would be 

applied to the block contracts for highly complex individuals, and the 
block contracts and framework agreements for complex and less complex 

individuals. This would allow providers to flex the care and support they 
offer between individuals and across schemes without the need to 
continually request an assessment or review. 

 
22. Weekly rates for each provider would be set initially based on several 

factors as listed below:  
 

a. Complexity. 
b. Size of the Supported Living scheme. 

c. Total placements commissioned across all schemes. 
 

Next Steps 

 
23. The recommendation is for engagement with all stakeholders to discuss 

the options and proposals set out above. This would include: 
 

a. Service users 
b. Families and carers 

c. Care and support providers 
d. Housing providers 

e. Local district and borough councils 

Page 62



 

f. Internal Teams: 

i. Social Worker Teams 
ii. Commercial 

iii. Brokerage 
iv. Finance 

v. Legal 
vi. ASC Pathway 

vii. Information Governance 
 

24.Feedback would be used to refine the options appraisal and develop 

recommendations for future commissioning arrangements for Supported 
Living services in Staffordshire, with these recommendations brought to 

a future Cabinet meeting for approval. 
 

Legal Implications 
 

25. The proposals are consistent with procurement regulations. Any 
additional legal implications will be considered as part of the engagement 
process and details will be shared as part of the outcome. 

 
Resource and Value for Money Implications 

 
26. In 2021/2022 MTFS savings of £0.5 million have been achieved in 

Supported Living through a review of voids. There are currently no 
further MTFS savings targets for Supported Living. Any additional 

resource and value for money implications will be considered as part of 
the engagement process and details will be shared as part of the 
outcome.  

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

Appendix 1 - Summary of Process and Outcomes of the Options Appraisal 
 
Executive Summary CIA 

 

Contact Details 
 
Assistant Director: Andrew Jepps, Assistant Director, Care Commissioning 

 
Report Author: Sarah Taylor 

Job Title:            Commissioning Manager 
Telephone No.:   01785 277089 

E-Mail Address:  sarah.taylor@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 63





1 
 

Future Commissioning Arrangements for Supported Living 

Services in Staffordshire 

 
Appendix 1: summary of process and outcomes of the options 

appraisal  
 

Process for the options appraisal 
 

1. An options appraisal has been used to understand how the Council 
(we) can best support individuals that require supported living in 

Staffordshire. We looked at possible contracting and pricing options for 
the future following a review of a range of different models being used 
by other Local Authorities or models which could be applied to 

supported living services. We looked at the strengths, weakness, 
opportunities and threats (SWOT) of each option as well as scoring 

them against strategic objectives for the new service. The strategic 
objectives use learning from the current services and consider what 

we need moving forwards. The highest scoring options were identified 
as the options that best met our strategic objectives. 

 
Other Local Authority research 
 

2. To inform the options appraisal, nine other Councils were contacted in 
June 2021 to understand their approach to supported living. This 

identified: 
 

a) A number of different models were being used for Learning 
Disability and Mental Health supported living services; 

b) In the main, Local Authorities were setting pricing rates – There 
was a mix of one rate or two rates - dependant on an individual’s 
needs, or rates were based on zones within the county - taking 

into consideration rural areas. One Local Authority did not set 
rates; they based evaluation of tenders on 70% quality and 30% 

price; 
c) In the majority of areas, Local Authorities utilised an electronic 

Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) procurement tool or flexible 
framework contracting arrangements; 

d) In most cases, Local Authorities were allowing entry onto a DPS 
or Framework based around Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
registration and in some instances CQC rating and upfront 

additional quality questions were considered in this. 
 

Options and scoring 
 

3. The following possible contracting options considered were:  

 

Page 65



2 
 

a) Remain with what is currently in place, with a DPS and no needs-
based or geographical lots (lots representing separate contracts 

in separate geographical areas), where quality checking is 
completed after joining the DPS; 

b) Re-tender a new DPS where the inclusion of lots and more robust 
quality checks would be completed before we would accept 

providers onto it; 
c) Introduce a closed framework with geographical lots and lots for 

needs – this only opens up to new providers once and is then is 
closed to new providers for the remainder of the contract term; 

d) Establish a flexible framework arrangement with geographical lots 

and lots for needs – which can be opened up regularly to new 
providers throughout the contract term; 

e) Have one provider (either Local Authority trading Company 
(LATC) or private provider) to deliver all care and support through 

a block contract arrangement (where an agreement is made for 
the provider to deliver a specific quantity of care); 

f) Allocate a percentage of business (e.g. 20% for most complex 
cases) to a LATC or Prime (single) Provider and the remaining 
80% of business would be offered via another option in this list; 

g) Block contract in geographical areas with one or multiple 
providers in each area; 

h) Work with 8-12 core providers for the majority of work on a block 
contract basis based on specialism or geographical basis. With the 

DPS or Flexible Framework to fall back on if core providers cannot 
offer supply or are not able to source care for any reason.  

 
4. The following pricing options were considered: 
 

a) Remain with what is currently in place with a reference banding 
rate (which uses benchmarks); 

b) Fix a one hourly and sleep-in charge/rate across all Supported 
Living regardless of complexity of an individual’s needs; 

c) Fix a clearly defined hourly and sleep in rate for standard and 
more complex needs across all supported living; 

d) Agree a cost per person per week with a block contracted 
providers across multiple homes and needs. 

 

5. The strategic objectives that the contracting and pricing options were 
scored against are as follows: 

 
a) The model ensures less variability in costs and less risk of very 

high cost placements; 
b) The model offers more consistent quality of provision; 

c) The model supports flexibility to meet the changing support needs 
of individuals; 

Page 66



3 
 

d) The model ensures providers can address unmet need (for 
example to  deliver more complex care and/or adapt their 

provision across different categories of care needs); 
e) The model is manageable in respect of its resource requirement 

(for example on staff time) to us and to providers of services; 
f) The model allows placements to be made and paid for in a timely 

manner; 
g) The model ensures ongoing security of supply to us throughout 

the term of the contract, is not anti-competitive to the wider 
market and is inclusive of new entrants and Small and Medium 
Enterprise’s (SME’s); 

h) The model supports client choice; 
i) The model supports us to have positive partnership relationships 

with contracted providers. 
 

6. Each contracting option was scored against each strategic objective 
and then a total score was calculated, whereby the highest score 

represented the option scoring highest across all nine strategic 
objectives. Pricing options were also scored on all appropriate strategic 
objectives. The scores applied ranged from 0-2, whereby:  

 
a) A score of 0 meant that the possible model did not meet our 

strategic objective.  
b) A score of 1 meant that the possible model partially met our 

strategic objective.  
c) A score of 2 meant that the possible model did meet our strategic 

objective.  
 
Outcome of the options appraisal 

 
Contracting options reviewed 

 
7. From the analysis, the top three scoring contracting options identified 

as best suiting the Council’s needs are as below: 
 

a) A flexible framework with lots for districts and disability – this can 
be reopened regularly to new providers throughout the contract 
term – scored 15 

b) A percentage of business (e.g. 20% for most complex cases) to a 
LATC or Prime Provider and the remaining 80% of business 

offered via another option in this list – scored 12 
c) To work with 8-12 core providers for most of the work on a block 

contract basis based on specialism or geographical basis. With the 
DPS or Flexible Framework to fall back on if core providers cannot 

offer supply or are not able to source care for any reason – scored 
12 

 

Page 67



4 
 

8. All other options scored between 3 and 10 out of a possible 18.  
 

Pricing options reviewed 
 

9. From the analysis, the top scoring pricing option identified as best 
suiting the Council’s needs was to agree a cost per person per week 

with a block contracted providers across multiple homes and needs. 
This option scored 10 out of a possible 10.  

 
10. All other options scored between 5-6 out of a possible 10.  

 

Page 68



 

Community Impact Assessment 

Checklist and Executive Summary 

 

Name of Proposal:  

Future contracting options for Supported Living from 1st October 2022 onwards 

Project Sponsor:   

Andy Marriott, Lead Commissioner (Learning Disability, Mental Health, Autism and 

Carers) 

Project Manager:   

Sarah Taylor, Commissioning Manager, All Age Disability and Mental Health 

Commissioning Team 

Date Completed:     

22/11/21 

  

P
age 69



 

Final Checklist 
 
Prior to submitting your Community Impact Assessment (CIA), please ensure that the actions on the checklist below have been 

completed, to reassure yourself / SLT / Cabinet that the CIA process has been undertaken appropriately. 

 

Checklist 
Action 

Completed 
Comments/Actions 

The project supports the 

Council’s Business Plan, 

priorities and MTFS. 

Yes SWOT analysis undertaken to assure 

options suggested fit within business 

objectives 

It is clear what the decision is 

or what decision is being 

requested. 

Yes Agreement sought to progress to 

engagement on suggested options 

following SWOT analysis – full details 

on Appendix 1 of Cabinet paper.  

For decisions going to 

Cabinet, the CIA findings are 

reflected in the Cabinet 

Report and potential 

impacts are clearly 

identified and mitigated 

for (where possible). 

Yes High-level community impact 

assessment completed at this stage. 

Cabinet will consider a paper in 

January 2022, following which 

additional work and engagement will 

be carried out to enable a thorough 

assessment to be undertaken as part 

of the engagement process and further 

scoping exercise completed to 

understand any impacts, mitigations 

and recommendations in more detail. 

The aims, objectives and 

outcomes of the policy, 

service or project have been 

clearly identified. 

Yes Objectives clearly defined in Cabinet 

paper and in Appendix 1 of the Cabinet 

paper 

The groups who will be 

affected by the policy, service 

or project have been clearly 

identified. 

Yes Detailed within high-level CIA 

P
age 70



 

Checklist 
Action 

Completed 
Comments/Actions 

The communities that are 

likely to be more adversely 

impacted than others have 

been clearly identified. 

Yes Detailed within high-level CIA 

Engagement / consultation 

has been undertaken and is 

representative of the 

residents most likely to be 

affected. 

No This will be progressed if initial Cabinet 

meeting on 19th January 2022 

approves the paper. Engagement will 

be undertaken from February through 

to May 2022.  

A range of people with the 

appropriate knowledge and 

expertise have contributed to 

the CIA. 

No High-level CIA only at this stage. The 

thorough assessment will be 

undertaken as part of the engagement 

process and further scoping exercise 

completed to understand any impacts, 

mitigations and recommendations 

in more detail. This will involve all 

parties to contribute to this.  

Appropriate evidence has 

been provided and used to 

inform the development and 

design of the policy, service 

or project. This includes data, 

research, 

engagement/consultation, 

case studies and local 

knowledge. 

Partially SWOT analysis undertaken to support 

the evidence for change in 

arrangements. This will continue as 

part of the next stage of the 

engagement and will be updated in the 

thorough assessment to follow.  

The CIA evidences how the 

Council has considered its 

statutory duties under the 

Equality Act 2010 and how it 

has considered the impacts of 

Partially SWOT analysis undertaken to support 

the evidence for change in 

arrangements. This will continue as 

part of the next stage of the 

P
age 71



 

Checklist 
Action 

Completed 
Comments/Actions 

any change on people with 

protected characteristics. 
engagement and will be updated in the 

thorough assessment to follow. 

The next steps to deliver the 

project have been identified. 
Yes Contained within Cabinet paper.  

 

  

P
age 72



 

Executive Summary 
 

The Executive Summary is intended to be a collation of the key issues and findings from the CIA and other research undertaken. This 

should be completed after the CIA and research has been completed. Please structure the summary using the headings on the left that 

relate to the sections in the CIA template. Where no major impacts have been identified, please state N/A.  

 

 Which 
groups will 
be 
affected? 

Benefits Risks 
Mitigations / 
Recommendations 

PSED Disability only To simplify and consolidate 
our commissioning approach 
to ensure the Supported 
Living market delivers quality 
care, meets demand and 
delivers outcomes to prevent, 
reduce and delay needs and 
enable independence.  
 
To develop a thriving care 
market which can prevent, 
reduce and delay needs, are 
asset focussed and promote 
independence. 
 
To simplify and streamline 
the process for making 
placements for everyone 
involved.  
 
People will receive support to 
meet their assessed eligible 
care and support needs. 

Risk of complaint and 
challenge. 
 
People who currently receive 
their support from a non-
contracted Provider may be 
required to transition to a 
new Provider if: 
 
 Their current preferred 

Provider is not successful 
in joining the new 
arrangements and they 
are not able to manage a 
Direct Payment to enable 
them to choose to remain 
with their current Provider. 
 

They are not able to afford 
the required ‘top up’ – as per 
SCC Choice Policy, when 
exercising choice 

Full engagement will be 
undertaken as part of any 
tendering process to 
understand the impact this 
will have on individuals and 
outline all risks and 
mitigations may occur.  
 
All proposed ways of working 
will align with The Care Act 
(inclusive of Choice Policy)  
TUPE may be applicable in 
certain circumstances, thus 
providing the potential for 
continuity of staffing in 
particular circumstances   
 
Completion of a Care Act 
compliant Asset Based 
Assessment and MCA (as 
appropriate) 
 

What are the impacts on 

residents with a protected 

characteristic under the 

Equality Act 2010?  

Highlight any concerns 

that have emerged as a 

result of the equality 

analysis on any of the 

protected groups and how 

these will be mitigated. It 

is important that Elected 

Members are fully aware 

of the equality duties so 

that they can make an 

informed decision, and 

this can be supported 

with robust evidence. 

P
age 73



 

 Which 
groups will 
be 
affected? 

Benefits Risks 
Mitigations / 
Recommendations 

 
People will be able to express 
choice and control, as per the 
Care Act, when selecting 
their support, but not at any 
cost. 

Cabinet will consider a paper 
in January 2022, following 
which additional work and 
engagement will be carried 
out to enable a thorough 
assessment to be undertaken 
including the development of 
mitigations / 
recommendations. 

Health and Care Mental Health 

and Disability  
The new suggested approach 
is to enable us to source care 
for our more complex clients 
with mental health needs in a 
simplified and consolidated 
commissioning approach to 
ensure the Council develops 
a thriving care market which 
can prevent, reduce and 
delay needs, are asset 
focussed and promote 
independence. 
 
Subject to assessed eligible 
needs and the personalised 
outcomes identified, the 
provision of effective 
Supported Living may 
support individuals (as per 

Evidence of positive 
outcomes achieved within 
existing Supported Living 
services shows that without 
the right support at the right 
time, an individual’s overall 
health and wellbeing may 
deteriorate.  
 
Potential for market not to be 
able to deliver support for 
individuals that have complex 
LD and/or MH needs. 
 
 

Continued engagement with 
key stakeholders to ensure 
that supported living 
provision meets an 
individual’s assessed, eligible 
care and support needs - 
ensuring those needs and 
outcomes are identified at 
the point of assessment. This 
will be achieved through 
processes such as reviews, 
contract management, 
quality assurance etc. 
 
Full engagement will be 
undertaken as part of any 
tendering process to 
understand the impact this 
will have on individuals and 

How will the proposal 

impact on residents’ 

health? How will the 

proposal impact on 

demand for or access to 

social care or health 

services? 

P
age 74



 

 Which 
groups will 
be 
affected? 

Benefits Risks 
Mitigations / 
Recommendations 

their assessed eligible care 
and support needs) to: 
 

 Participate in a range 
of physical activities 
(e.g. attend local 
leisure centres) 

 Support with meal 
preparation skills 

 Providers may be able 
to identify signs of 
deteriorating health at 
the earliest 
opportunity and 
support a person to 
seek appropriate 
health and support 
 

Address any substance 
misuse issues they may 
have.  
 

outline all risks and 
mitigations may occur.  
 
Stimulation of the market to 
ensure we have providers in 
the County that can support 
individuals with complex 
needs.  
 
Completion of a Care Act 
compliant Asset Based 
Assessment and MCA (as 
appropriate).  
 
Cabinet will consider a paper 
in January 2022, following 
which additional work and 
engagement will be carried 
out to enable a thorough 
assessment to be undertaken 
including the development of 
mitigations / 
recommendations. 
 
   
 
 

Economy To recommission 

P
age 75



 

 Which 
groups will 
be 
affected? 

Benefits Risks 
Mitigations / 
Recommendations 

How will the proposal 

impact on the economy of 

Staffordshire or impact 

on the income of 

Staffordshire’s residents? 

Mental Health 

and Disability 

 

Staffordshire’s Supported 
Living care and support on an 
affordable basis whilst 
recognising the diversity and 
size of the market and to 
ensure the Council avoid 
changes which risk 
destabilising the market. 
 
Via the new arrangements, 
SCC will: 
 Provide the opportunity for 

existing Providers to 
potentially expand their 
existing provisions in 
Staffordshire as well as 
encourage new Providers 
to the region where 
applicable to do so. 

 Clarify payment rates to 
meet assessed eligible 
care and support needs. 

 
Implement proportionate 
contractual arrangements – 
including resolution routes 
and an equitable process to 
consider yearly inflationary 
increases. 

Risk of complaint and 
challenge from Providers 
(including increased risk of 
Provider failure) should SCC 
fail to set and implement 
sustainable rates. 
 
 

Engagement will be 
undertaken with the 
marketplace with regards to 
a new contracting model, 
including the introduction of 
rates.  
 
The new contractual 
arrangement will provide an 
opportunity to review 
inflationary increases on an 
annual basis. 
 
Cabinet will consider a paper 
in January 2022, following 
which additional work and 
engagement will be carried 
out to enable a thorough 
assessment to be undertaken 
including the development of 
mitigations / 
recommendations. 
 

P
age 76



 

 Which 
groups will 
be 
affected? 

Benefits Risks 
Mitigations / 
Recommendations 

 
Support that is given to 
Individuals will allow them to 
become active members of 
society and, where 
appropriate, gain 
employment / volunteering 
experience in a step-down 
model of care. 
 

Environment N/A    
How will the proposal 

impact on the physical 

environment of 

Staffordshire? Does this 

proposal have any 

Climate Change 

implications? 

Localities / 
Communities 

Mental 
Health, 
Disability, 
Providers of 
Services 

Supported Living Providers 
will be encouraged to support 
individuals to access their 
local community services and 
try and identify universal 
community services to meet 
assessed needs before the 
option of directly paid for 
support staff time. 
 

Communities insufficiently 
resourced and/or equipped to 
meet any potential increase 
in need. 
 
Despite best efforts, via the 
new arrangements, to source 
local support opportunities, 
Providers may not wish to 
establish services in 
particular locations. 

Work with Supporting 
Communities Programme and 
people Helping People 
Agenda to raise awareness 
and accessibility. 
 
Cabinet will consider a paper 
in January 2022, following 
which additional work and 
engagement will be carried 
out to enable a thorough 

How will the proposal 

impact on Staffordshire’s 

communities? 

P
age 77



 

 Which 
groups will 
be 
affected? 

Benefits Risks 
Mitigations / 
Recommendations 

The new arrangements will 
provide greater opportunities 
for Individuals to source care 
and support in their preferred 
location which may be within 
their local rural community. 

assessment to be undertaken 
including the development of 
mitigations / 
recommendations. 
 
Work with Provider 
marketplace and assessment 
and care management teams 
to try and identify potential 
future needs in more rural 
localities. 

 P
age 78



 
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

Period: 16 February 2022 - 15 June 2022  
 
The Forward Plan of Key Decisions is prepared on a monthly basis and published at least 28 days 
before the start of the period covered. Key Decisions are defined as those Executive decisions 
which are likely: 
 

(a) to result in the County Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings 
which are, significant having regard to the relevant budget for the service or function to 
which the decision relates; or  

(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more electoral divisions in the County’s area. 

 
The Forward Plan will contain ALL matters which the Leader of the Council has reason to 
believe will be the subject of a Key Decision to be taken by the Cabinet.  It may also include 
decisions that are not key decisions but are intended to be determined by the Cabinet.  Part of 
the Cabinet meetings listed in this Forward Plan may be held in private where a report for the 
meeting contains exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) and that the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.  If you would like to make 
representations about any particular decision to be conducted in private then please email: 
michael.bradbury@staffordshire.gov.uk. Such representations must be received in advance 6 
clear working days before the date on which the decision is scheduled to be taken. 
 
The Membership of the Cabinet consists of: 
 
Leader of the County Council – Alan White 
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy and Skills – Philip White 
Cabinet Member for Health and Care – Julia Jessel 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Infrastructure and Climate Change – Simon Tagg 
Cabinet Member for Commercial Matters – Mark Deaville 
Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport – David Williams 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources – Ian Parry 
Cabinet Member for Communities and Culture – Victoria Wilson 
Cabinet Member for Children and Young People – Mark Sutton 
Cabinet Member for Education (and SEND) – Jonathan Price 
 
A copy of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions may be inspected, free of charge, at the Member 
and Democratic Services office, County Buildings, Martin Street, Stafford, during normal office 
hours Monday to Friday. A copy of the notice will also be available on Staffordshire County 
Council’s Website at www.staffordshire.gov.uk. 
 
Documents submitted for decision will be a formal report which will be available on the County 
Council’s website at least 5 clear working days before the date the decision is to be made, 
unless that report is subject to any prohibition or restriction on its disclosure.  Other relevant 
background documents used in compiling the report will also be made available in the same 
way unless they are subject to any prohibition or restriction on their disclosure. 
Minutes of Cabinet meetings will be published within three working days and will be subject to 
call-in.  The call-in period lasts for three working days.  If the decision is not called-in it will be 
implemented on the fourth working day.  Special urgency items are exempt from call-in. 
 

John Tradewell 
Director of Corporate Services 

Page 79

Agenda Item 10

mailto:michael.bradbury@staffordshire.gov.uk
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/


 
Forward Plan of Key Decisions 

Period: 16 February 2022 - 15 June 2022 
 

NOTE:  
(1) The Forward Plan of Key Decisions sets out all Key Decisions intended to be made by Cabinet during the above 

period. 
(2) The Cabinet date can be provisional and items may move/roll forward to another meeting date but this will be 

monitored. 
(3) Items should remain on the Notice until a decision is made by Cabinet or is formally removed. 
(4) Where there is an intention to make a decision in private the exemption paragraph relied upon will be included within 

this notice 
 

Predicted 

Date of 
Decision 

Public or 

Private 
Decision 

Title and Description Background 

Documents 

Consultation Contact 

Officer 

February 

2022 
 

Public Potential Joint Coroners Service, 

Business Case (Cabinet Member for 
Communities and Culture (Victoria 

Wilson)) 
To consider the business case for 

requesting a merger of the 
Staffordshire South Coronial jurisdiction 

with Stoke on Trent and North 
Staffordshire, following the retirement 
of HM Senior Coroner. 

 

 

Some 

consultation will 
have taken 

place but further 
consultation will 

be carried out at 
the time that 

the business 
case is 
submitted to the 

Chief Coroners 
Office and MoJ. 

Janene Cox 

OBE (Tel: 
(01785) 

278368) 
Service Area: 

Regulatory 
Services 

February 

2022 
 

Public Business Case for Care Home 

Developments (Cabinet Member for 
Health and Care (Julia Jessel)) 

The Council previously presented to 
Cabinet the recommendation to build 

Council owned care homes with a 

 

 

N/A Helen 

Trousdale (Tel: 
01785 277008) 

Service Area: 
Health and 

Care 

P
age 80



 

Predicted 

Date of 
Decision 

Public or 

Private 
Decision 

Title and Description Background 

Documents 

Consultation Contact 

Officer 

commissioned provider to deliver the 

care. The purpose of the care homes 
was to increase affordable nursing care 

capacity for older people in our 
communities who can no longer live 

independently at home. This cabinet 
item is to re-visit these 
recommendations following the impact 

of the pandemic on the Staffordshire 
care home market. The item will 

evaluate the initial recommendations 
and conclude with a recommendation 

on whether to or not proceed with the 
build of Council owned care homes. 

February 

2022 
 

Public Integrated Performance Report - 

Quarter 3 2021/22 (Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Resources 

(Ian Parry), Leader of the Council 
(Alan White)) 
The quarterly Integrated Performance 

Report provides an overview of 
Staffordshire County Council’s progress, 

performance and financial position in 
delivering against our Strategic Plan 

and Delivery Plan. 

 

 

N/A Kerry Dove, 

Rob Salmon 
(Tel: 07855 

679112, Tel: 
(01785) 27 
6354) 

Service Area: 
Corporate 

Services 

February 
2022 

 

Private Entrust Service Delivery Agreement 
(Leader of the Council (Alan White)) 

To consider changes to the Entrust 
Service Delivery Agreement. 

 
 

N/A Ian Turner 
(Tel: 01785 

277228) 
Service Area: 

Education 

P
age 81



 

Predicted 

Date of 
Decision 

Public or 

Private 
Decision 

Title and Description Background 

Documents 

Consultation Contact 

Officer 

Support 

Services 

March 
2022 

 

Public High Needs Capital Funding 
Recommendations (Cabinet Member 

for Education (and SEND) (Jonathan 
Price)) 

Recommendations for High Needs 
Capital Funding Projects. 

 
 

None at this 
stage 

Carolyn Knight 
() 

Service Area: 
Families & 

Communities - 
Wellbeing & 

Partnerships 

March 
2022 

 

Public 2022/23 Schools Capital 
Programme (Jonathan Price) 

The Statement of Priorities for the LEA 
schools for Staffordshire exc. Stoke on 
Trent and the proposed programmes for 

2022/ 23. 

 
 

None Ian Turner 
(Tel: 01785 

277228) 
Service Area: 
Corporate 

Services - 
Strategic 

Property 

March 
2022 

 

Public Economic Strategy (Deputy Leader 
of the Council and Cabinet Member 

for Economy and Skills (Philip 
White)) 

Our Economic Strategy outlines the 
County Council’s economic priorities for 

the next five years whilst also setting 
out our longer 20-year vision for the 
Staffordshire economy, with a focus on 

our four immediate primary ambitions 
to reimagine and regenerate our town 

centres, support start-up and scale-up 
businesses, enable a higher skilled and 

 
 

Consultation 
document to be 

agreed by 
Cabinet, with a 

planned public 
consultation 

taking place 
afterwards. 

Anthony Hodge 
(Tel: 01785 

277204) 
Service Area: 

Business & 
Enterprise 

P
age 82



 

Predicted 

Date of 
Decision 

Public or 

Private 
Decision 

Title and Description Background 

Documents 

Consultation Contact 

Officer 

higher paid workforce and develop 

investment ready projects. 

March 
2022 

 

Public Bus Service Improvement Plan - 
Enhanced Partnership Plan and 

Scheme (Cabinet Member for 
Highways and Transport) 

This report outlines the purpose of the 
Enhanced Partnership Plan and 

Enhanced Partnership Scheme, which 
summarise the main themes of the Bus 
Service Improvement Plan, in setting 

out an analysis of local bus services in 
Staffordshire, the objectives for the 

quality and effectiveness of bus services 
and how the Enhanced Partnership 

Scheme or Schemes are intended to 
achieve these objectives. The Enhanced 

Partnership Scheme describes the 
Facilities, Measures and Obligations to 
be implemented to meet those 

objectives and how the partnership is 
constituted and operates. Both the 

Enhanced Partnership Plan and the 
Enhanced Partnership Scheme have 

been prepared by Staffordshire County 
Council, in consultation with the bus 

operators and district councils, under 
the Transport Act 2000 (c.38). 

 
 

Staffordshire 
Bus Operators 

and Community 
Transport 

Providers 

Clive Thomson 
(Tel: 01785 

276522) 
Service Area: 

Connectivity 
and 

Sustainability 

March 

2022 
 

Public Children's Homes Block Contract 

(Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People (Mark Sutton)) 

 

 

N/A Natasha Moody 

(Tel: 
07976191079) 

P
age 83



 

Predicted 

Date of 
Decision 

Public or 

Private 
Decision 

Title and Description Background 

Documents 

Consultation Contact 

Officer 

Staffordshire County Council is seeking 

a children's home block contract for 13 
beds with an option to extend for a 

further 26 beds. This contract is to 
meet the needs of our complex children 

within Staffordshire and ensure that our 
most vulnerable children have stability 
to help achieve good outcomes. 

Service Area: 

Wellbeing & 
Partnerships - 

Families & 
Communities 

March 
2022 

 

Public Highways and Transport Capital 
Programme 2022/23 (Cabinet 
Member for Highways and 

Transport) 
Consideration and approval of the 

Highways and Transport 2022/23 
capital investment programme, 

including highway maintenance and 
integrated transport improvements. 

 
 

None at this 
stage. 

James Bailey 
(Tel: 01785 27 
6591) 

Service Area: 
Economy, 

Infrastructure 
and Skills 

April 2022 

 

Public Staffordshire Rural Economic 

Strategy (Deputy Leader of the 
Council and Cabinet Member for 

Economy and Skills (Philip White)) 
To seek adoption of a new strategy 
focusing on the County's rural economy 

as part of the County Council's 
economic policies and programmes. 

 

 

District Councils 

and Key 
Stakeholders 

Anthony Hodge 

(Tel: 01785 
277204) 

Service Area: 
Business & 
Enterprise 

April 2022 

 

Public Framework Agreement for 

Demolition Services (Cabinet 
Member for Commercial Matters 

(Mark Deaville)) 

 

 

None at this 

stage 

Ian Turner 

(Tel: 01785 
277228) 

P
age 84



 

Predicted 

Date of 
Decision 

Public or 

Private 
Decision 

Title and Description Background 

Documents 

Consultation Contact 

Officer 

This Framework Agreement is to 

provide Staffordshire County Council 
with an agreed schedule of rates for the 

provision of demolition services on 
County Council owned buildings 

throughout the whole County of 
Staffordshire. The works/service will 
generally consist of providing a 

responsive service for carrying out the 
works as/when required 

Service Area: 

Strategic 
Property 

April 2022 

 

Public Integrated Performance Report - 

Quarter 4 2021/22 (Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Resources 

(Ian Parry), Leader of the Council 
(Alan White)) 

The quarterly Integrated Performance 
Report provides an overview of 

Staffordshire County Council’s progress, 
performance and financial position in 
delivering against our Strategic Plan 

and Delivery Plan. 

 

 

N/A Kerry Dove, 

Rob Salmon 
(Tel: 07855 

679112, Tel: 
(01785) 27 

6354) 
Service Area: 

Corporate 
Services 

P
age 85




	Agenda
	3 Decision notice of the meeting held on 15 December 2021
	5 Update from COVID-19 Member Led Local Outbreak Control Board
	7 Economic Recovery & Growth: Enhancing Delivery
	8 Establishment of the Staffordshire Leaders Board
	Appendix 1 - Terms of Reference for the Staffordshire Leaders Board

	9 Future Commissioning Arrangements for Supported Living Services in Staffordshire
	Appendix 1 - Options Appraisal for Supported Living
	Summary CIA for Options Appraisal for the Future Commissioning Model for Supported Living Services in Staffordshire

	10 Forward Plan of Key Decisions

